
 

 

AGENDA OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

REGULAR RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, June 8, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. 

TCERA Board Room, 136 N. Akers Street, Visalia, CA 93291 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 

 

Documents related to the items on this agenda are available for public inspection at the Retirement Office, 136 

N Akers Street, Visalia, CA, during normal business hours.  Such documents are also available on TCERA’s 

website, www.tcera.org, subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting. 

 

Persons wishing to listen to the meeting in progress may access a live stream link located on TCERA’s website 

www.tcera.org.  

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

 

Any person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of five (5) minutes.  A total of 15 minutes will 

be allotted for the Public Comment period unless otherwise extended by the Board Chair. If you are part of a 

large group that would like to comment on an agenda item, please consider commenting in writing or sending 

one spokesperson to speak on behalf of the group.  Public comments are limited to any item of interest to the 

public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board of Retirement. (Gov’t Code Section 

54954.3(a).)   

 

In Person:  Persons who wish to address the Board of Retirement during public comment or regarding an item 

that is on the agenda may address the Board of Retirement in person at the meeting.   

 

Zoom: Persons wishing to participate in public comment remotely may call the TCERA Office during regular 

business hours (Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) within 48 hours of the meeting at 559-713-

2900 for access information. In an effort to assist the Board Secretary in identifying the agenda item relating to 

your public comment, please indicate the agenda item number in the chat feature.  

 

Email: Members of the public may also submit public comment via U.S. mail or via email to 

BORPublicComment@tularecounty.ca.gov before the meeting. The comments received via U.S. mail or email 

before the meeting will be read to the Board of Retirement in open session during the meeting as long as the 

comments meet the requirements for Public Comments as posted in the agenda.  

 

As a courtesy to those in attendance, all individuals are requested to place cell 

phones and other electronic devices in the non-audible alert mode. 
 

COUNTY OF TULARE 
 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

TELEPHONE  (559) 713-2900 

FAX (559) 730-2631 

www.tcera.org 

136 N AKERS STREET 

VISALIA, CALIFORNIA  93291 

Leanne Malison 
Retirement Administrator 

http://www.tcera.org/


I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  Under state law, 

matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time.  For items 

appearing on the agenda, the public is invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for Board 

consideration.  Any person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of five (5) minutes. Please state 

your name for the record. 

 

V. X-AGENDA ITEMS 

 

VI. DISABILITIES 

 

1. Closed session to be held regarding disability matters listed on this agenda. 

2. In the matter of the disability application of Irma Palma, consider and take action regarding the 

application for a disability retirement. 

3. In the matter of the disability application of Jimmy Alonzo, consider and take action regarding the 

application for a disability retirement. 

4. Accept as filed the Disability Status Report Overview. 

 

VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

1. Approve Minutes of the following meetings: 

a. Retirement Board Minutes of May 25, 2022. 

2. Approve payments to: 

a. Nossaman – invoice for legal services to the Board of Retirement in the amount of $ 2,760.75, 

for the period ending April 30, 2022. 

 

VIII. ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

1. Update by Dave Kehler regarding the Administrative Committee meeting of May 25, 2022.  

Discussion and possible action regarding the following items: 

a. TCERA and TCERA Property, Inc. Financial Statements – February 28, 2022 and March 31, 

2022. 

b. TCERA Strategic Planning Session  

c. Draft of Fiscal Year 2022-2023 TCERA and TCERA Property, Inc. Administrative Budget. 

 

IX. INVESTMENTS 

 

1. Presentation from Ocean Avenue regarding TCERA’s allocation to private equity investments.  

Discussion and possible action. 

2. Presentation from DWS RREEF regarding TCERA’s allocation to real estate investments. 

Discussion and possible action. 

3. Discussion and possible action regarding TCERA’s strategic investment allocation and investment 

managers, including performance, contracts, and fees. 

 

 



X. NEW BUSINESS 

 

1. Discussion and possible action regarding the DWS RREEF – Proxy Statement and Notice of Annual 

Meeting of Stockholders to be held on July 21. 2022.  

2. Discussion and possible action regarding addition to TCERA Hearing Officer Panel – Thomas W. 

Degn. 

 

XI. EDUCATION ITEMS 

 

1. Discussion and possible action regarding Summary Education Reports as filed: 

a. Pete Vander Poel - DWS Real Estate Conference, April 26-28, 2022, 14 hours. 

b. Jim Young – SACRS Spring Conference, May 10-13, 2022, 13 hours 

c. Laura Hernandez Rangel – SACRS Spring Conference, May 10-12, 2022, 12.5 hours. 

d. Leanne Malison – SACRS Spring Conference, May 10-13, 2022, 15 hours. 

e. Leanne Malison – BlackRock Future Forum, Inflation Challenge, May 18, 2022, 1 hour. 

f. Mary Warner – BlackRock Future Forum, Inflation Challenge, May 18, 2022, 1 hour. 

2. Discussion and possible action regarding available educational events. 

 

XII. UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 

1. Investment Committee Meeting June 8, 2022, 10:00 a.m. 

2. Board of Retirement Meeting June 22, 2022, 8:30 a.m. 

3. Administrative Committee Meeting June 22, 2022, 10:00 a.m. 

 

XIII. TRUSTEE/STAFF COMMMENTS 

 

Under state law, matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time. 

 

XIV.   ADJOURNMENT 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the Secretary of the Board of Retirement at (559) 713-

2900. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will help enable staff to make reasonable 

arrangements to ensure meaningful access.  Documents related to the items on this Agenda 

submitted after distribution of the Agenda packet are available for public inspection at TCERA, 

136 N. Akers Street, Visalia, CA.  during normal business hours. 
 

 

 

 

 















































































This document is confidential and contains proprietary information regarding Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.  It may not be copied or distributed 
without the express prior written consent of Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.

Tulare County Employees’ Retirement Association
June 2022

Ocean Avenue Fund III Ocean Avenue Fund IV

Portfolio Overview of



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Legal Notice

2

This presentation (the “Presentation”) is for informational purposes only and is being furnished on a confidential basis. This Presentation is not an offer to sell, nor a solicitation of an offer to buy, any security or 
investment product. Any offer, sale or solicitation of interests with respect to any fund managed by Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, L.P. (“OACP” or the “Firm”) are made only by means of a confidential offering 
memorandum (the “Memorandum”), limited partnership agreement, and subscription agreement (collectively, the “Offering Materials”), and will be subject to the terms and conditions contained in such 
documents in accordance with applicable securities laws. Recipients agree that none of OACP or its affiliates or their respective partners, members, employees, officers, directors, agents, or representatives shall 
have any liability for any misstatement or omission of fact or any opinion expressed herein. This Presentation is not intended for general distribution or publication and is strictly confidential. This Presentation and 
the information contained herein consists of confidential proprietary information and is the sole property of OACP. By accepting a copy of this Presentation, each recipient agrees that it will, and will cause its 
directors, partners, officers, employees, representatives, advisors, agents and affiliates, (i) not copy, reproduce, or distribute this Presentation, in whole or in part, to any individual or entity without the prior 
written consent of OACP; (ii) keep permanently confidential all information contained herein that is not already public; and (iii) return this Presentation to OACP upon its request and not retain any copies, extracts 
or other reproductions in whole or in part. Recipients shall not use any of the information contained herein in any way, directly or indirectly, that is in competition with or detrimental to OACP and/or any of its 
affiliates. Additionally, by accepting this Presentation, each prospective investor agrees that this Presentation is being delivered to them subject to the provisions of this disclaimer and any confidentiality 
agreement entered into between OACP and each prospective investor.

The information contained herein is preliminary, is provided for discussion purposes only, is only a summary of key information, is not complete, and does not contain certain material information about Ocean 
Avenue Fund V, L.P., a private equity fund that is expected to be formed, sponsored and advised by OACP or its affiliates (together with any parallel funds, the “Fund” or “Fund V”), including important conflicts 
disclosures and risk factors associated with an investment in Fund V, and is subject to change without notice. This Presentation is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Offering Materials, including without 
limitation all of the cautionary statements and risk factors set forth therein, copies of which will be made available in the future to qualified investors upon request and should be read carefully prior to any 
investment in Fund V.

Prior Performance and Experience. Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results. The strategies described herein may not be suitable for all investment goals. Investment in any fund managed 
by OACP involves a high degree of risk and is suitable only for certain sophisticated investors. The historical returns achieved by any prior investments are not a prediction of future performance or a guarantee 
of future results. There can be no assurance that Fund V will achieve comparable results as those presented or that Fund V will be able to implement its investment strategy or achieve its investment objective. 
Investors in Fund V may lose part or all of their invested capital. 

In addition to historical information, this Presentation contains “forward-looking statements”. The words “may,” “can,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “seek,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “forecast,” “project,” “hope,” “estimate,” 
“intend,” “continue,” “target,” “plan,” “believe” or the negatives thereof or other variations thereon or comparable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements 
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors which may cause actual results, performance or achievements of the investments described herein to be materially different from 
any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. In addition, new risks and uncertainties may arise from time to time. Some important factors which 
could cause actual results to differ materially from those in any forward-looking statements include changes in economic conditions, political changes, legal and regulatory requirements, exchange rate 
fluctuations, as well as changes in the markets, prospects, competition or consumer preferences for products or services of any company in which an investment is made, among others. Additional risks of which 
OACP is not currently aware also could cause actual results to differ. Accordingly, all forward-looking statements should be evaluated with an understanding of their inherent uncertainty and recipients should not 
rely on such forward-looking statements. OACP assumes no obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements for any reason, or to update the reasons actual results could differ materially from 
those anticipated in these forward-looking statements, even if new information becomes available to OACP in the future.

Forward-looking statements and discussions of the business environment and investment strategy included herein (e.g., with respect to financial markets, business opportunities, demand, investment pipeline 
and other conditions, including certain information obtained from published sources and third-party sources) are subject to COVID-19. The full impact of COVID-19 is particularly uncertain and difficult to predict, 
therefore such forward-looking statements do not reflect its ultimate potential effects, which may substantially and adversely impact Fund V’s execution of its investment strategy and the performance of Fund V 
and other OACP funds.

Any Fund securities will be subject to significant restrictions on transfer under the federal securities laws and the limited partnership agreement of the Fund. There is no trading market for the Fund’s securities, 
and none may ever develop. Therefore, investors should have the financial ability and willingness to accept the high risk and lack of liquidity inherent in an investment in the Fund for an extended period of time.

This Presentation has been prepared from original sources, or other cited data, and is believed to be reliable. However, no representations are made as to the accuracy or completeness thereof. The information 
in this Presentation is not presented with a view to providing investment advice with respect to any security, or making any claim as to the past, current or future performance thereof, and OACP expressly 
disclaims the use of this Presentation for such purposes. The inclusion of any third-party firm and/or company names, brands and/or logos does not imply any affiliation with these firms or companies. None of 
these firms or companies have endorsed OACP or its affiliates. References to specific securities in this Presentation are for illustrative purposes only and should not be considered a recommendation to carry out 
certain securities transactions. It should not be assumed that recommendations made in the future will be profitable or will equal the performance discussed herein.

Statements contained in this Presentation are based on current expectations, estimates, projections, opinions and beliefs of OACP as of the date hereof. Such statements involve known and unknown risks and 
uncertainties, and undue reliance should not be placed thereon. Neither OACP nor any of its affiliates makes any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of the 
information contained herein and nothing contained herein should be relied upon as a promise or representation as to past or future performance of Fund V or any other entity. Unless otherwise noted, the 
information contained herein is unaudited and may be preliminary and subject to change, and OACP and its members, partners, stockholders, managers, directors, officers, employees and agents do not have 
any obligation to update any of such information. Certain figures in this Presentation may have been rounded. Unless otherwise noted, statements herein reflect OACP’s opinions and beliefs regarding general 
market activity, industry or sector trends or other broad-base economic or market conditions. These opinions are not a reliable indicator of future performance or opportunities and actual events will vary from 
those described herein and may do so materially and adversely. There can be no assurance that historical trends will continue during the life of the Fund. In addition, certain information contained herein has 
been obtained from published and non-published sources and/or prepared by third-parties (including portfolio company management), and in certain cases has not been updated through the date hereof. While 
such information is believed to be reliable for the purposes of this presentation, OACP assumes no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of such information and such information has not been 
independently verified by it.

The contents herein are not to be construed as legal, business, or tax advice. Each recipient should conduct its own independent analysis of the data referred to herein and consult with its own counsel and 
advisors.



This document is confidential and contains proprietary information regarding Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.  It may not be copied or distributed 
without the express prior written consent of Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.

Table of Contents

Firm Overview …………………...………………….. Section I

Investment Philosophy / Process Section II

Performance Section III

Section IV

.………………..

.………..….………...…………………..

…...………...…………………..General Discussion

Appendix…………….………...…………………..Disclosures



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Overview
Seeking Attractive Returns Without Taking Commensurate Levels of Risk

3
Senior Team with 
Long-Tenured 
Investing 
Experience

1

Focus on Least 
Efficient Private 
Equity Market 
Segment

2

Differentiated 
Sourcing Model 
Enhances Deal 
Selectivity

3

Positive 
Convexity, 
Relative Value 
Investment 
Strategy

4

Pioneer with 
Independent 
Sponsors Creates 
Captive Partner 
Network

5

Established Track 
Record Across 
Multiple Funds 
with $1.6b in AUM

6

4



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

TCERA Status Update

• Three internal promotions and three new team members hired
o Daniel Smith & Toby D’Ambola: Sr. Associate  Vice President
o Tal Weiss: Sr. Analyst  Associate

• Raising Fund V with $283mm in committed capital and an expected fund size of $550mm
• Fund III cumulative developments since last board update:

o $14mm of capital invested
o $199mm of capital returned through sale of 7 platforms with an additional $108mm 

expected to be returned over the next 12 months 
• Fund IV cumulative developments since last board update:

o $180mm of capital in new investments in 18 new platforms
o $6mm of capital in follow-on investments
o $49mm of capital returned through sale of 2 platforms with an additional $174mm 

expected to be returned over the next 12 months

5
Notes: (1) See performance related footnotes on final slide. (2) Projected contributions and distributions are based on current estimates and are subject to change. Projected distributions are 
exclusive of taxes, fees, and expenses. (3) Invested capital and realized capital figures as of May 20, 2022. (4) PitchBook Private Equity Benchmark as of 05.20.22. OACP performance is as of 
12.31.21.

Performance as of 12.31.21(1)

($ in mm) Vint. Commit. Date Fund Size % of 
Fund Contrib. Distrib. Total

Value
Net
DPI

Net 
MOIC

Net
IRR

Fund IV 2019 $20.0mm
$6.0mm

Mar. ’19 Jul. 
’20 $356.2mm 7.3% $17.4mm $3.4mm $26.6mm 0.2x 1.5x 48.3%

Fund III 2016 $20.0mm May ’16 $231.8mm 8.6% $17.6mm $19.2mm $38.2mm 1.1x 2.2x 30.0%

Blended $46.0mm $588.0mm 7.8% $35.0mm $22.6mm $64.8mm 0.6x 1.8x 32.7%

Updates from August 2020(3)

Fund V Highlights

Commit. Date Exp. 
Fund Size

% of 
Fund

Cum. 
Commit.

$20.0mm Feb. ’22 $550.0mm 3.6% $66.0mm

Benchmark Snapshot – IRR(4)

OACP Targeted Returns: 20.0% IRR
OAF III Net IRR: 30.0% | OAF IV Net IRR: 48.3%

75th

Quart.
Median 25th

Quart.
OAF
IV

OACP
Target

75th

Quart.
Median 25th

Quart.
OAF

III
OACP
Target

Fund IV Highlights

% Called 
YTD 

Proj. DPI 
YE 2022E

77.0% 0.7x

27.9% 
21.3% 

15.8% 
20.0% 

30.0% 

47.5% 

29.5% 

11.9% 

20.0% 

48.3% 

Fund III Highlights

% Called 
YTD 

Proj. DPI 
YE 2022E

92.0% 1.5x

2022 Updates(2)

($ in 000's) 12.31.21 YTD Proj. N6M YE 2022E

Fund IV
Contributions $17,420 $2,600 $2,600 $22,620
Distributions $3,380 - $11,401 $14,781

Fund III
Contributions $17,600 $800 $800 $19,200
Distributions $19,200 - $9,338 $28,538



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Current Team

Ownership Structure, Team Composition

6

Jeff Ennis
Partner

Duran Curis
Partner

Jacques Youssefmir
Partner

Pete Notz
Partner

Matt Kahn
Ops. Associate

Melody Bamdad
CFO

• Ownership Structure

o Partnership 100% employee owned and 
managed

• Investment Team Growth

o New team hires are evaluated on an as-needed 
basis to support growth

o We view our sponsor network to be an 
extension of the investment team, which has 
been growing in quality and quantity over time

o Hired an Associate (September 2022 start-date) 
and two Analysts (August 2022 start-dates)

o Evaluating the need for an Operations Analyst

• Team Departures

o No anticipated departures amongst current 
team

o Lina Aluzri: End of analyst program

o Darren Loh: End of analyst program

• Carry Allocation

o Carry proceeds will be broadly distributed 
amongst team

Partners

Operations

Operations
Analyst
(TBD)

Inc. Analyst
August 2022

Inc. Analyst
August 2022

Investment Team

Tal Weiss
Associate

Daniel Smith
Vice President

Toby D’Ambola
Vice President

Inc. Associate
September 2022

Investment Team Cont.



This document is confidential and contains proprietary information regarding Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.  It may not be copied or distributed 
without the express prior written consent of Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.

Table of Contents

Firm Overview Section I

Section II

Performance Section III

Section IVGeneral Discussion

AppendixDisclosures

…………………...…………………..

.………………..

.………..….………...…………………..

…...………...…………………..

…………….………...…………………..

Investment Philosophy / Process



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Ocean Avenue Capital Partners

8

A Leading Source of Institutional Equity Capital for Independent Sponsors

Independent Sponsor Pioneer

Large and growing partner 
network led by senior 
investment team with 20+ 
years of private equity 
experience on average

Established Results

PE model focused on positive-
convexity value strategy in an 
inefficient market segment

Redefined Sourcing Engine 

Robust deal flow and 
selectivity process unlocked by 
expansive sponsor network

40+
Total Realizations

(Direct Deals)

<4 Years
Avg. Hold Period

(Direct Deals)

400+
Direct Deals 

Reviewed per Year

<2%
Investments in 
Sourced Deals 

2011
First Independent 

Sponsor Deal

1,000+
Independent 

Sponsors in Network

Source: OACP internal data as of 02.15.2021. There can be no assurance that historical trends will continue.



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

11.0x

---

5.5x

$90bn

---

$45bn

2,000

---

1,000

Target Market Segmentation

Sources: (1) PitchBook 2020 Annual US PE Breakdown; (2) McKenna Capital Management, “The Little Engines Who Can: Why Small-Cap Buyout Can Drive Investor Returns”; (3) Independent 
Sponsor data from Pitchbook as of 06.07.2021 – the data set is defined as funds and EV deal sizes sub-$500mm. 9

Investment Strategy is Focused on Less Efficient Markets

Ocean Avenue Target Market

# of Deals 
Completed $ Fundraised

Small-Cap Lower MM Middle Market Upper MM Large-Cap Mega-Cap

Independent Sponsors3

Independent sponsors comprise a growing portion of the lower middle market and middle market

‘07 – ‘10 ‘11 – ‘14 ‘15 – ‘18

Small-Cap Mid-Cap Large-Cap

Defined by the highest opportunity set coupled with the 
lowest capital allocation1

Supply-demand imbalance results 
in lower avg. EBITDA multiples2

62.7%
Independent Sponsors as a 
Portion of LMM & MM Firms

44.7%
Independent Sponsor Deals 
as a Portion of LMM & MM



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Differentiated Sourcing Model

Source: OACP internal data as of 12.31.2020; OACP has over 1,000 sponsor partners in network. “Typical Fund” information is based on OACP’s opinions, beliefs and experience regarding the 
private equity fund industry. OACP did not conduct a formal market survey, and the indicated information is not representative of all private equity funds. A third-party analysis may reach different 
conclusions.

10

Partner Network Enhances Deal Funnel Efficiency
O

AC
P 

M
od

el
Ty

pi
ca

l P
E 

Fu
nd

 M
od

el

CIMs Reviewed Indications of Interest Letters of Intent Deals Completed

~1,000
100% of Sourced

50
5% of Sourced

10
1% of Sourced

2-3
0.25% of Sourced

OACP Model Creates Scale & 
Enhances Deal Selectivity

~400
x40 Typical Fund

10 - 15
x5 Typical Fund

Attractive Attributes of the OACP Sourcing Model

Pre-Vetted 
Transactions 

at Initial 
OACP 

Review

Two-Tier 
Screening 
Process

Data-Driven  
Assessment 
Processes

Portfolio 
Breadth 
Unlocks 
Unique 

Perspectives

OACP Typically Reviews Deals at or 
near the LOI Stage



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Captive Sponsor Network

Source: OACP internal data as of 12.31.2020.
11

We Believe Early Mover Advantage Positions OACP at the Center of the 
Independent Sponsor Universe

Strategic Sourcing 
Relationships
Established relationships with 
leading middle market lenders, 
attorney, accountant, board member, 
placement agent relationships

Significant Brand
Value

+10 years working with 
independent sponsors

Positioning Creates a 
Central Funnel for 

Independent Sponsor 
with High Barriers to 

Entry

Deal-Centric
Investment Process
Investment directive is centered 
around deal selectivity with sponsors 
proactively seeking OACP as the 
partner of choice to create value

Network
Effect

Active investor in the space with an 
expansive network of stake holders 
and advocates on behalf of OACP

By the Numbers

42.9% 

12.2% 

11.7% 

8.2% 

6.9% 

5.5% 

12.6% 

Deep Sponsor 
Experience

Many sponsors are 
industry experts with 

deep relationships and 
domain expertise

Expansive 
Coverage
The sponsor 
network 
stretches from 
coast-to-coast 
and 39 different 
states

1,000
Independent Sponsors in 

Network

2011
First Year Independent 
Sponsors Transaction

+

Generalist
Bus. Services
Industrial Mfg.

Consumer
Technology
Healthcare

Other



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Deal Flow & Selectivity

Source: OACP internal data as of 12.31.2021. Selectivity calculated by dividing closed deals sourced in each time period by the total number of deals sourced that period. There can be no 
assurance historical trends will continue. 12

% of Direct Investments Closed from Total Sourced Opportunities

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

20.0% 16.2% 10.9% 9.0% 5.8% 4.4% 2.3% 4.2% 2.5% 1.9% 1.8%

# of Direct Deals Sourced Independent Sponsor % of Deal Flow

Fund I
Program Launch

Fund II
Program Launch

Fund III
Program Launch

Fund IV
Program Launch

Advanced-Stage Deal Flow and Selectivity have Improved Significantly

30
74

119 134

190

250

352 356
397

427
455

27%

65%
73%

81% 83%

86%

88% 92% 91% 92% 90%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Median OACP Purchase Multiples

Sources: Pitchbook, “2021 US PE Breakdown”, OACP internal data as of 12.31.21.
13

*Includes deals closed through 12.31.21. Analysis excludes investments made by OACP that lacked meaningful EBITDA (i.e., turnaround/distressed situations, and companies 
purchased on revenue multiples). For this analysis, six direct investments made by OACP were excluded for the multiple shown. Such transactions should not be considered 
directly comparable to OACP’s portfolio companies based on several factors, including transaction size, industry and because certain companies are publicly traded. Such 
comparison has not been verified by any third party, which may reach different conclusions. There can be no assurance historical trends will continue.

Median OACP Entry EV / EBITDA Purchase Multiple
5.8x*

OACP Net Debt / EBITDAOACP EV / EBITDA U.S. PE EV / EBITDA U.S. Net Debt / EBITDA

Focus on Less Competitive Segment Results in Lower Purchase Multiples

2011 2013 2015 2017 2019 20212012 2014 2016 2018 2020

6.0x 
5.3x 5.6x 5.2x 

6.3x 
5.8x 5.8x 

6.7x 

4.4x 

5.8x 

7.0x 

9.2x 
8.6x 

10.1x 

13.0x 

10.5x 

12.9x 
12.0x 

12.6x 
13.4x 

12.8x 
13.7x 

3.8x 3.4x 3.4x 
2.8x 

3.7x 3.4x 
2.8x 2.8x 

2.3x 2.0x 
0.6x 

4.6x 4.4x 

6.1x 
6.8x 

5.4x 
6.3x 6.2x 6.4x 6.0x 5.9x 5.8x 



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

 Benchmarking & 
Screen Tools

 Industry Operator / 
Advisory Network

 Utilize Independent 
Sponsor Sourcing 
Engine

 Business Diligence

 Financial Analysis & 
KPI Review

 Industry Intelligence

 Third-Party Service 
Providers

 Background 
Screening & 
Reference Work

 Legal Documentation

OACP Decision Making Process

14

Confirmatory
DiligenceIntake Screened Preliminary

Interest Close

Investment Committee Involvement

Pass | Continue Diligence Decision

Key Documentation at Each Step of the Investment Process

Diligence
Roadmap

Screening & 
Benchmarks

Preliminary
Interest Report

Confirmatory 
Diligence Report

Investment 
Recommendation+



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

OACP - Investment Pipeline
as of September 01, 2021
Stage: Intake
Investment 
Name Sponsor Category xEBITDA LTM Revenue Margin %

Hist.
CAGR xRevenue

Opportunity 1 Sponsor 1 Consumer - 
Grow th

12.0x  $56.7m  22.1%  177.8%  2.3x 

Opportunity 2 Sponsor 2 Tech-Enabled 
Services

9.0x  $5.7m  36.1%  16.2%  3.6x 

Opportunity 3 Sponsor 3 Professional 
Services

7.2x  $9.7m  33.1%  7.0%  2.5x 

Portfolio 
Company 25

Sponsor 4 Consumer 
Manufacturing

1.4x  $162.7m  24.0%  106.1%  0.4x 

Dry Foods Manufacturing - Internal Comps
($ in mm) Sponsor Intake LTM Revenue LTM Margin % Hist. CAGR xEBITDA

Opportunity 1 Sponsor 1 May-22 $68.8m  17.9%  44.9%  8.5x 
Opportunity 2 Sponsor 2 Aug-19 $16.0m  15.0%  4.1x 
Opportunity 3 Sponsor 3 Nov-17 $8.5m  29.3%  35.9%  5.5x 
Opportunity 4 Sponsor 4 Aug-19 $73.7m  16.8%  9.8%  9.6x 
Opportunity 5 Sponsor 5 Apr-17 $7.0m  26.8%  22.9%  5.3x 
Opportunity 6 Sponsor 6 Jun-17 $45.9m  23.4%  10.8%  4.0x 
Portfolio Company 25 Sponsor 7 Sep-21 $162.7m  24.0%  106.1%  1.4x 
Opportunity 8 Sponsor 8 Jun-20 $25.1m  8.7%  6.8x 
Opportunity 9 Sponsor 9 Apr-22 $62.4m  9.8%  7.7%  5.7x 
Opportunity 10 Sponsor 10 Oct-21 $18.0m  9.4%  0.2%  5.7x 
Opportunity 11 Sponsor 11 Nov-16 $32.8m  12.5%  24.9%  6.7x 
Opportunity 12 Sponsor 12 Jan-17 $111.8m  11.2%  1.5%  6.8x 
Opportunity 13 Sponsor 13 Nov-21 $42.4m  20.0%  9.8%  7.4x 

Optimizing Data Advantage at Intake

15

A

B

C

D

Commentary

A

B

C

D

OACP reviews its investment pipeline 
twice weekly. During Team Meeting 
discussions, high-level metrics including 
Revenue, EBITDA, Growth, and 
Purchase Price are shown next to each 
investment opportunity. The numbers 
shown in colored circles correspond to 
the quartile rankings for each metric, 
compared to similar businesses in 
OACP’s database. 

When deals are logged into OACP’s 
CRM, they are immediately placed into 
business categories.

When Portfolio Company 25 was logged 
into Intake, the business stood out in 
terms of high-level metrics. Compared to 
other consumer manufacturing 
businesses, it was the biggest and one of 
the most profitable, and yet was trading 
for the lowest EBITDA multiple of any 
OACP had seen.

While screening Portfolio Company 25, 
OACP was able to pull a detailed list of 
comparable consumer manufacturing 
deals, which allowed us to revisit old 
underwriting and tap relationships in our 
network.



This document is confidential and contains proprietary information regarding Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.  It may not be copied or distributed 
without the express prior written consent of Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.

Table of Contents

Firm Overview Section I

Section II

Performance Section III

Section IVGeneral Discussion

AppendixDisclosures

Investment Philosophy / Process .………………..

…………………...…………………..

.………..….………...…………………..

…...………...…………………..

…………….………...…………………..



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

OACP Funds Summary

17
Note: Please refer to Glossary for explanation of performance terms. Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results. There can be no assurance that any unrealized values will be 
realized at the valuations included herein. Actual results may vary materially and adversely. Investors may lose investment capital.

Fund IV Capital Deployment Bridge
(Cumulative % of Fund)

12-31-21 Recent
Investments

Reserves Total
Existing

New
Platforms

New
Reserves

Total

$16.8mm
$2.2mm

$3.2mm $22.2mm

$3.3mm $0.6mm $26.0mm

65% 73% 85% 85% 98% 100% 100%

Recent Investments

Provider of mortgage quality control and compliance
services catering to banks, credit unions, and mortgage
servicers nationwide.

Opportunity 27
Invested:    $730k
On: 03-14-22

Fund
($ in 000's)

Fund 
Vintage Commit. Contrib. Distrib. Fair

Value
Total
Value DPI Gross

TVPI
Net

TVPI
Gross
IRR

Net
IRR

OAF IV 2019 $26,000 $17,420 $3,380 $23,214 $26,594 0.2x 1.7x 1.5x 52.4% 48.3%

OAF III 2016 $20,000 $17,600 $19,200 $18,982 $38,182 1.1x 2.3x 2.2x 32.9% 30.0%

Total $46,000 $35,020 $22,580 $42,196 $64,776 0.6x 2.0x 1.8x 36.6% 32.7%

As of December 31, 2021

4
Investments 
Remaining

Opportunities 29 and 30 Identified and Expected to Close in June

Provider of consulting and system integration services
focused exclusively on next generation data
transformation for Fortune 500 companies.

Opportunity 26
Invested:    $730k
On: 02-28-22

Opportunity 28
Invested:    $730k
On: 05-06-22

Provider of less-than-truckload services for freight
arriving at and departing from major U.S. air and ocean
ports.



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Performance Benchmarking

18
Source: PitchBook Private Equity Benchmark as of 05.20.22. OACP performance is as of 12.31.21.

Fund III Net IRR Benchmark
(2016 Vintage)

Fund IV Net IRR Benchmark
(2019 Vintage)

Fund III Net TVPI Benchmark
(2016 Vintage)

Fund IV Net TVPI Benchmark
(2019 Vintage)

Fund III Net DPI Benchmark
(2016 Vintage)

Fund IV Net DPI Benchmark
(2019 Vintage)

Top
Quartile

Median Bottom
Quartile

OAF III Top
Quartile

Median Bottom
Quartile

OAF IV

27.9% 
21.3% 

15.8% 

30.0% 

47.5% 

29.5% 

11.9% 

48.3% 

2.0x 
1.7x 

1.5x 

2.2x 

1.5x 
1.3x 

1.1x 
1.5x 

Top
Quartile

Median Bottom
Quartile

OAF III Top
Quartile

Median Bottom
Quartile

OAF IV

0.8x 

0.4x 
0.2x 

1.1x 

0.2x 
0.0x -

0.2x 

Top
Quartile

Median Bottom
Quartile

OAF III Top
Quartile

Median Bottom
Quartile

OAF III



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Fund IV

19

Unrealized Core Investments

Core Investments Investment
Date

Exit
Date

Invested
Capital

Realized
Value

Unrealized
Value

Total
Value

Gross
MOIC

Gross
IRR

As of December 31, 2021
($ in 000's)

Note: Please refer to Glossary for explanation of performance terms. Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results. There can be no assurance that any unrealized values will be 
realized at the valuations included herein. Actual results may vary materially and adversely. Investors may lose investment capital.

Portfolio Company 2 08-13-19 $974 $0 $2,873 $2,873 2.9x 63.1%
Portfolio Company 3 08-13-19 $405 $0 $692 $692 1.7x 24.8%
Portfolio Company 4 09-11-19 $288 $0 $656 $656 2.3x 42.8%
Portfolio Company 5 09-23-19 $222 $34 $483 $517 2.3x 50.2%
Portfolio Company 7 12-24-19 $865 $0 $1,407 $1,407 1.6x 27.0%
Portfolio Company 8 01-31-20 $999 $0 $1,757 $1,757 1.8x 53.4%
Portfolio Company 9 02-28-20 $469 $0 $470 $470 1.0x 0.1%
Portfolio Company 10 05-18-20 $942 $0 $1,200 $1,200 1.3x 15.9%
Portfolio Company 11 11-06-20 $655 $0 $1,221 $1,221 1.9x 71.3%
Portfolio Company 12 11-09-20 $885 $0 $1,426 $1,426 1.6x 51.3%
Portfolio Company 13 12-04-20 $417 $0 $985 $985 2.4x 122.4%
Portfolio Company 14 12-31-20 $885 $0 $1,792 $1,792 2.0x 102.1%
Portfolio Company 15 12-31-20 $787 $0 $1,288 $1,288 1.6x 64.4%
Portfolio Company 16 12-31-20 $885 $0 $885 $885 1.0x 0.0%
Portfolio Company 17 02-11-21 $670 $0 $879 $879 1.3x 35.8%
Portfolio Company 18 03-31-21 $687 $0 $1,085 $1,085 1.6x 92.8%
Portfolio Company 19 05-14-21 $738 $0 $1,094 $1,094 1.5x 86.2%
Portfolio Company 20 05-21-21 $591 $0 $596 $596 1.0x 1.6%
Portfolio Company 21 05-21-21 $550 $0 $550 $550 1.0x 0.0%
Portfolio Company 22 06-04-21 $885 $0 $885 $885 1.0x 0.0%
Portfolio Company 23 06-21-21 $364 $0 $364 $364 1.0x 0.0%



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Fund IV (Cont’d)

20

Unrealized Core Investments (Cont'd)

Core Investments Investment
Date

Exit
Date

Invested
Capital

Realized
Value

Unrealized
Value

Total
Value

Gross
MOIC

Gross
IRR

As of December 31, 2021
($ in 000's)

Realized & Partially Realized Core Investments

Note: Please refer to Glossary for explanation of performance terms. Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results. There can be no assurance that any unrealized values will be 
realized at the valuations included herein. Actual results may vary materially and adversely. Investors may lose investment capital.

Total Unrealized $15,608 $34 $24,037 $24,071 1.5x 43.6%

Total Realized & Partially Realized $1,192 $3,484 $563 $4,047 3.4x 102.6%

Gross Performance $16,801 $3,517 $24,600 $28,117 1.7x 52.4%
Net Performance $17,420 $3,380 $23,214 $26,594 1.5x 48.3%

Portfolio Company 24 11-03-21 $619 $0 $625 $625 1.0x 5.2%
Portfolio Company 25 11-24-21 $826 $0 $826 $826 1.0x 0.0%

Portfolio Company 1 06-20-19 12-10-21 $609 $1,710 $107 $1,818 3.0x 58.0%
Portfolio Company 6 12-16-19 $584 $1,773 $456 $2,229 3.8x 211.6%



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Fund III

21

Core Investments Investment
Date

Exit
Date

Invested
Capital

Realized
Value

Unrealized
Value

Total
Value

Gross
MOIC

Gross
IRR

As of December 31, 2021
($ in 000's)

Realized & Partially Realized Core Investments

Unrealized Core Investments

Note: Please refer to Glossary for explanation of performance terms. Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results. There can be no assurance that any unrealized values will be 
realized at the valuations included herein. Actual results may vary materially and adversely. Investors may lose investment capital.

Total Realized & Partially Realized $6,291 $18,769 $3,667 $22,436 3.6x 59.4%

Portfolio Company 3 09-15-16 11-14-18 $192 $1,097 $0 $1,097 5.7x 137.1%
Portfolio Company 4 09-30-16 01-01-20 $124 $0 $0 $0 0.0x -
Portfolio Company 7 01-17-17 12-22-20 $663 $1,525 $2 $1,527 2.3x 28.9%
Portfolio Company 8 01-30-17 12-15-20 $278 $1,816 $283 $2,099 7.5x 67.2%
Portfolio Company 13 05-18-17 07-30-21 $714 $4,142 $53 $4,195 5.9x 78.8%
Portfolio Company 14 06-07-17 02-12-19 $54 $127 $0 $127 2.3x 65.7%
Portfolio Company 15 06-07-17 06-30-20 $143 $0 $0 $0 0.0x -
Portfolio Company 19 02-21-18 09-29-21 $431 $512 $175 $687 1.6x 13.5%
Portfolio Company 20 02-21-18 02-14-20 $507 $1,029 $0 $1,029 2.0x 68.7%
Portfolio Company 22 03-13-18 12-31-20 $713 $0 $0 $0 0.0x -
Portfolio Company 31 01-25-19 08-05-21 $510 $952 $29 $981 1.9x 29.2%
Portfolio Company 33 02-25-19 03-02-21 $759 $2,230 $0 $2,230 2.9x 76.4%
Portfolio Company 9 02-01-17 $282 $995 $246 $1,240 4.4x 78.1%
Portfolio Company 12 05-05-17 $176 $1,551 $624 $2,176 12.3x 148.3%
Portfolio Company 21 02-28-18 $744 $2,792 $2,255 $5,047 6.8x 75.1%

Portfolio Company 1 05-20-16 $511 $0 $381 $381 0.7x (5.7%)
Portfolio Company 2 07-29-16 $356 $87 $956 $1,043 2.9x 23.0%
Portfolio Company 5 10-13-16 $489 $0 $2,370 $2,370 4.8x 43.7%
Portfolio Company 6 12-14-16 $272 $0 $254 $254 0.9x (1.3%)



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Fund III (Cont’d)

22

Core Investments Investment
Date

Exit
Date

Invested
Capital

Realized
Value

Unrealized
Value

Total
Value

Gross
MOIC

Gross
IRR

As of December 31, 2021
($ in 000's)

Unrealized Core Investments (Cont'd)

Note: Please refer to Glossary for explanation of performance terms. Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results. There can be no assurance that any unrealized values will be 
realized at the valuations included herein. Actual results may vary materially and adversely. Investors may lose investment capital.

Total Unrealized $9,803 $369 $15,087 $15,456 1.6x 13.8%

Total Core $16,094 $19,138 $18,754 $37,891 2.4x 32.3%

Portfolio Company 10 02-07-17 $508 $0 $2,772 $2,772 5.5x 46.2%
Portfolio Company 11 02-23-17 $544 $16 $93 $109 0.2x (29.7%)
Portfolio Company 16 07-31-17 $447 $100 $1,083 $1,183 2.6x 27.3%
Portfolio Company 17 08-28-17 $84 $0 $121 $121 1.4x 9.7%
Portfolio Company 18 12-29-17 $320 $0 $742 $742 2.3x 25.3%
Portfolio Company 23 06-15-18 $678 $34 $916 $950 1.4x 11.4%
Portfolio Company 24 06-20-18 $278 $0 $0 $0 0.0x -
Portfolio Company 25 08-02-18 $483 $0 $507 $507 1.1x 1.5%
Portfolio Company 26 08-03-18 $316 $0 $417 $417 1.3x 8.5%
Portfolio Company 27 10-05-18 $539 $12 $285 $297 0.6x (17.7%)
Portfolio Company 28 10-09-18 $578 $0 $958 $958 1.7x 16.9%
Portfolio Company 29 10-17-18 $490 $0 $572 $572 1.2x 4.9%
Portfolio Company 30 01-18-19 $873 $0 $151 $151 0.2x (70.0%)
Portfolio Company 32 02-15-19 $632 $0 $632 $632 1.0x 0.0%
Portfolio Company 34 05-31-19 $392 $120 $723 $843 2.1x 36.7%
Portfolio Company 35 06-27-19 $379 $0 $429 $429 1.1x 5.0%
Portfolio Company 36 06-27-19 $632 $0 $724 $724 1.1x 5.5%



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Fund III (Cont’d)

23

Non-Core Investments Investment
Date

Commit. Contributed Distributed Fair Value Total
Value

Gross
TVPI

Gross
IRR

As of December 31, 2021
($ in 000's)

Non-Core Investments

Note: Please refer to Glossary for explanation of performance terms. Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results. There can be no assurance that any unrealized values will be 
realized at the valuations included herein. Actual results may vary materially and adversely. Investors may lose investment capital.

Fund Investment 1 10-21-16 $1,035 $849 $1,090 $774 $1,864 2.2x 46.8%
Fund Investment 2 06-07-17 $777 $747 $1,000 $768 $1,769 2.4x 31.8%
Fund Investment 3 02-21-18 $777 $565 $55 $972 $1,026 1.8x 53.7%

Total Non-Core $2,588 $2,160 $2,145 $2,514 $4,659 2.2x 39.7%

Gross Performance $18,254 $21,283 $21,268 $42,551 2.3x 32.9%
Net Performance $17,600 $19,200 $18,982 $38,182 2.2x 30.0%



This document is confidential and contains proprietary information regarding Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.  It may not be copied or distributed 
without the express prior written consent of Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.

Table of Contents

Firm Overview Section I

Section II

Performance Section III

Section IVGeneral Discussion

AppendixDisclosures

Investment Philosophy / Process .………………..

…………………...…………………..

.………..….………...…………………..

…...………...…………………..

…………….………...…………………..



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Current Market Outlook, Portfolio Impacts

25

General Outlook Ocean Avenue Portfolio Impacts & Positioning

Raising Interest Rates Crnt: Modest Impact | LT:  Neutral/Negative Outlook 

• Interest rates have increased 75 bps year to date through May of 2022

• The Federal Reserve stopping point for rate increases is not certain, if inflation does not show signs
of diminishing soon officials have indicated rates need to rise upwards of 300 to 400 bps over the
next 12 to 18 months

• OAF IV current cumulative avg. leverage ratio ~2.0 x(1), 
which OACP believes considerably mitigates risk of 
permanent losses in a downturn

• LT uncertainty for exit valuations; OACP strategy not 
reliant on financial engineering for returns

• Opportunities to capitalize on over-levered competitors

Inflationary Pressures Crnt: Modest Impact | LT:  Optimistic Outlook 

• Global economy in danger of entering a period of stagflation

• CPI data has been mixed – the gauge of core prices (excluding food and energy) rose a seasonally
adjusted 0.6% in April and 6.2% over the last 12 months

• Labor: U.S. unemployment rate as of April is at half century low of just 3.6% - the Fed’s target is
well above this mark but expects a strong labor market to persist in the short-to-medium term

• Global Unrest: Food prices across all commodities as well as oil & gas prices - will see prolonged
volatility as the global order is rebalanced, FOREX globally will experience similar effects

• COVID Persistence: Chinese Zero–COVID Policy will continue to put pressure on global supply
chains without a marked policy change

• Supply Chain: Absorbing aforementioned impediments along with elevated levels of pent-up
demand as B2B inventory levels are still well below 2019 levels

• To date, direct exposure has been limited as the market 
has been able to push price increases at will to 
consumers

• Labor has been the biggest constraint within portfolio to 
match growth over the last 12 month - recently have seen 
improvement in turnover

• Opportunities to gain market share and maximize 
utilization during this period

Looming Recessionary Environment Crnt: No Impact | LT:  Neutral/Negative Outlook 

• Fed Chairman, Jerome Powell, has indicated there are a number of plausible paths to have a “soft 
landing” but inflation is the top priority and will require the Fed to act accordingly including interest 
rate hikes and the reduction of quantitative easing

• Consumer discretionary spending artificially boosted by government relief efforts are reverting to 
pre-COVID levels adding to murky earnings across certain sectors

• Public markets are a leading indicator for valuation and economic pressure affecting the private 
markets especially in the middle market

• Appropriately levered, cash generating businesses will be able to sustain periods of economic 
volatility, whereas those not adequately positioned are likely to see strong headwinds over the next 
12-24 months

• Board discussions on pre-emptive economic slowdown 
measures and boxing any potential risk

• We believe OACP has remained disciplined on value and 
avoided non-capital efficient growth investments

• We believe we are positioned to capitalize on variety of 
market opportunities with periods of uncertainty creating 
unique opportunities to identify and capture value

Note: (1)  Cumulative average leverage ratio calculated by dividing the sum of all Fund IV debt by the sum of all Fund IV EBITDA. Portfolio Company #12 as of 03.31.22 and investments made 
after 12.31.21 as of respective close dates. All other Fund IV investments as of 12.31.21.



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Fee Structure
OACP Fund III

0.85%Rate:

$20,000,000Commitment:

$170,000Pro-Rata Fee:

x

=

1 Limited Partners receive 100% of all proceeds until such Partners have received cumulative distributions equal to such
Partner’s aggregate capital contributions.

2 Limited Partners receive 100% of all proceeds until the unpaid preferred return of such Partners is reduced to zero.

3 The General Partner receives 100% of cumulative distributions, until such Partner has received 10% of cumulative
distributions.

4 Thereafter, Limited Partners and the General Partner receive 90% and 10% of all proceeds, respectively.

26

OACP Fund V

Management Fee Carried Interest Waterfall

Limited Partners receive 100% of all proceeds until such Partners have received cumulative distributions equal to such 
Partner’s aggregate investment contributions with respect to realized investments and such Partner’s allocable share of cost 
contributions.

1

Limited Partners receive 100% of all proceeds until the unpaid preferred return of such Partners is reduced to zero.2

The General Partner receives 100% of cumulative distributions, until such Partner has received 15% of cumulative 
distributions.3

Thereafter, Limited Partners and the General Partner receive 85% and 15% of all proceeds, respectively.4

1.25%Rate:

$20,000,000Commitment:

$250,000Pro-Rata Fee:

OACP Fund IV

Management Fee Carried Interest Waterfall

1.25%Rate:

$26,000,000Commitment:

$325,000Pro-Rata Fee:

Limited Partners receive 100% of all proceeds until such Partners have received cumulative distributions equal to such 
Partner’s aggregate investment contributions with respect to realized investments and such Partner’s allocable share of cost 
contributions.

1

Limited Partners receive 100% of all proceeds until the unpaid preferred return of such Partners is reduced to zero.2

The General Partner receives 100% of cumulative distributions, until such Partner has received 10% of cumulative 
distributions.3

Thereafter, Limited Partners and the General Partner receive 90% and 10% of all proceeds, respectively.4

x

=

x

=

Management Fee Carried Interest Waterfall



This document is confidential and contains proprietary information regarding Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.  It may not be copied or distributed 
without the express prior written consent of Ocean Avenue Capital Partners, LLC.

Table of Contents

Firm Overview Section I

Section II

Performance Section III

AppendixDisclosures

Section IVGeneral Discussion

Investment Philosophy / Process

…………………...…………………..

.………..….………...…………………..

…...………...…………………..

…………….………...…………………..

.………………..



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Glossary
• “DPI” or Distributed / Paid-in means distributions received by investors relative to contributed capital. DPI is reflected on a net basis and reflects

the deduction of management fees, partnership expenses and carried interest borne by investors.

• “Gross IRR” refers to the aggregate, annual, compound, internal rate of return on investments, calculated before the payment of applicable
management fees, partnership expenses, carried interest and taxes. Gross IRR is calculated based on actual cash flows between the fund and
portfolio companies, assuming all assets of the fund are liquidated at their carrying value.

• “Gross MOIC” or Multiple on Invested Capital means total value, including both realized and unrealized value, divided by invested capital,
calculated before the deduction of management fees, partnership expenses, carried interest, and taxes.

• “Gross TVPI” or Gross Total Value / Paid-in means distributions received by investors and the unrealized value relative to contributed capital.
TVPI is reflected on a gross basis and does not reflect the deduction of management fees, partnership expenses, carried interest and other
expenses borne by investors, provided that for individual deals and funds, TVPI reflects the deduction of fees and / or carried interest by the
manager of the underlying deal / fund, but does not reflect OACP’s fees and carry.

• “Invested Capital” means the amount of capital invested, including follow-on investments, by the fund in the applicable transaction or
transactions. The amount of invested capital used includes amounts distributed to and recalled from investors under the relevant fund’s
recycling provisions.

• “Net IRR” refers to the aggregate, annual, compound, internal rate of return on investments, calculated after payment of applicable management
fees, partnership expenses and carried interest. Net IRRs are calculated based on actual cash flows between limited partners and the Fund,
assuming all assets of the fund are liquidated at their unrealized carrying value. An individual limited partner’s Net IRR may vary based on the
timing of capital contributions and distributions. Net IRR reflects use of the fund subscription line of credit, such that net IRR is based on the
investor capital call due date rather than the prior date on which the subscription line was drawn for investment; this generally has the result of
increasing IRR calculations (in some cases, materially). This calculation differs with respect to timing from the calculation of Gross IRR, which is
measured from the date the fund made the investment with borrowed funds.

• “Net MOIC” or Net Multiple on Invested Capital means total value, including both realized and unrealized value, divided by Invested Capital,
calculated after the payment of applicable management fees, partnership expenses and carried interest.

• “Net TVPI” or Net Total Value / Paid-in means distributions received by investors and the unrealized value relative to contributed capital. TVPI is
reflected on a net basis and does not reflect the deduction of management fees, partnership expenses, carried interest and other expenses
borne by investors, provided that for individual deals and funds, TVPI reflects the deduction of fees and / or carried interest by the manager of
the underlying deal / fund, as well as OACP’s fees and carry.

28



Trade Secret and Strictly Confidential

Glossary (Cont’d)
• “Unrealized Value” or “Fair Value”: For all OACP Fund III, fair market value of investments in other Funds represents the unaudited carrying

value of investments at 9/30/21 as reported by the sponsors with whom OACP has made such investments, plus or minus cash flows during
2021 Q4. For OACP Fund IV, fair market value represents the audited carrying value of investments at 12/31/21 as reported by the sponsors
with whom OACP has made such investments. The unrealized value or fair value of OACP Fund and other Fund investments is an estimate of
the price that would be received upon the sale of an investment in an orderly transaction between two parties at the measurement date under
current market conditions. OACP and Other Fund sponsors generally value their underlying portfolio company investments using a variety of
factors, including the most recently available financial information, comparable valuations, and indications of interest from third parties to acquire
certain of the companies. The actual realized returns of unrealized investments will depend on, among other factors, future operating results, the
value of the assets and market conditions at the time of disposition, any related transaction costs and the timing and manner of sale. OACP
believes that such unrealized values are reasonable and appropriate, however, there can be no assurance that proceeds will actually be
realized on these investments, or that, if and when realized, the proceeds will be equal to the values used. Accordingly, the actual realized
returns on investments that are partially realized or unrealized may differ materially from the values indicated herein. Unrealized fund
investments have been valued using current fair market value based upon a variety of factors, including valuations provided by the underlying
fund sponsors as determined in accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant fund’s governing documents. For the purposes of the
net returns presented herein, unrealized investments are treated as if liquidated at their unrealized value, and as though the applicable carried
interest was paid at such date, unless otherwise noted.

• Ocean Avenue Funds:

o “OAF III” and “Fund III” refer to Ocean Avenue Fund III, L.P.

o “OAF IV” and “Fund IV” refer to Ocean Avenue Fund IV, L.P.

29



RREEF America REIT II, Inc. 
First Quarter 2022 Update

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for 

Public Distribution.

Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association

June 2022



Confidential – Not for public distribution

\ 2

The information contained herein is for the strictly confidential use of only those persons to whom it is transmitted to by RREEF America L.L.C. (“RREEF America”) or its affiliates and is presented for 
informational purposes on behalf of RREEF America REIT II, Inc. ("RREEF America REIT II" "RARII" or the "Fund"). This information may not be reproduced, forwarded, distributed, circulated, quoted or 
otherwise disseminated without the prior written consent of DWS (“DWS”) and is highly confidential, proprietary and trade secret. Each recipient, as a condition to the provision of this information and 
by virtue of receipt thereof, agrees not to make a photocopy or other copy or to divulge the contents hereof to any other person (other than their own legal, business, investment or tax advisor in 
connection with obtaining the advice of such person with respect to the investment). Recipients acknowledge by virtue of receipt hereof that the failure to comply with the foregoing may result in 
irreparable damage to the Fund, RREEF America, the investors and DWS, among others.

The information contained herein should be read and reviewed in conjunction with the important disclosure information entitled “Certain Risk Factors” and “Important Information” set forth in these 
materials. Such disclosure information is applicable to all performance data throughout this presentation An offering of interests in the Fund will only be made pursuant to the Fund’s Confidential 
Offering Memorandum (the “Memorandum”) and a subscription agreement for the Fund, and the discussion herein is qualified in its entirety by reference to the detailed information, including the 
substantial risks associated with an investment in the Fund, which will appear in the Memorandum, the operating documents of the fund and the subscription agreement. Any decision to invest in the 
Fund must be based solely upon the information set forth in the Memorandum, the operating documents and the subscription agreement, which should be read carefully by potential subscribers and 
their advisers.

This document does not constitute or form part of any offer or invitation to subscribe for, underwrite or purchase an interest in the Fund and should not be treated as constituting an inducement or 
representation in connection with any offer or invitation, nor shall it or any part of it form the basis of or be relied upon in any way in connection with, any contract relating to shares of the Fund. No 
assurance can be given that the investment objectives of the Fund will be achieved or that an investor will receive a return of all or part of their investment, and investment results may vary 
substantially over any given time period. An investment in the Fund is not a deposit with, or liability of, Deutsche Bank (which indirectly owns a majority of the interest in DWS), RREEF America, DWS or 
any other entity in the DWS Group and is not insured or guaranteed by any governmental body or agency.  

The information contained herein was prepared without regard to the specific objectives, financial situation or needs of any particular person who may receive it. It is not intended that it be relied on 
to make any investment decision. None of RREEF America, DWS or any other entity in the DWS Group, gives any representation or warranty as to the accuracy, reliability or completeness of 
information which is contained in this document. 

The shares described herein, when and if offered, will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”) or any state or foreign securities laws, and the shares will be 
offered and sold only to persons that are “accredited investors” (as defined in Regulation D under the 1933 Act). The shares will be subject to certain restrictions on transferability and resale contained 
in the Fund documents. The shares have not been approved or disapproved by the Securities and Exchange Commission or any other state or foreign securities regulator. 

Delivery of this document does not imply that the information herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof. In reviewing the past performance information contained herein, 
investors should bear in mind that past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results. In particular, current economic conditions are not comparable to those that existed previously or 
those that may exist in the future. There can be no assurance that the Fund will achieve comparable results in the future, that targeted returns, diversification or asset allocations will be met or that 
the Fund will be able to implement their investment strategies and investment approaches or achieve their investment objectives.

Certain information contained herein constitutes forward-looking statements and statements of opinion and/or belief, which can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology including, 
without limitation, words such as “may”, “will”, “seek”, “should”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “project”, “estimate”, “intend”, “continue” or “believe” or the negatives thereof or other variations thereon or 
comparable terminology. Any such forward-looking statements (including, without limitation, projections of future earnings or value) and statements of opinion and/or belief contained herein 
represent RREEF America’s or DWS’s own assessment and interpretation of information available to it as at the date of this document (or at such other date as specified herein) and are subject to 
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors (many of which are beyond RREEF America’s or DWS’s control) which may cause actual results to be materially different from those 
contemplated in such statements.

Any position taken by RREEF America or any other entity in the DWS Group, or any of their respective affiliates may be adverse to any position taken by the Fund or by any investors in the Fund. There 
are no restrictions that prevent the Fund or DWS from competing with each other on potential investments or engaging in other transactions that may compete with or otherwise affect the Funds. 
Accordingly, there may exist or arise conflicts of interest between the Fund and/or DWS.

DWS does not provide accounting, tax or legal advice. Notwithstanding any other expressed or implied agreement, arrangement or understanding to the contrary, we hereby authorize you (and any of 
your employees, representatives or agents), subject to applicable U.S. federal and state securities laws, to disclose to any and all persons the structure and tax aspects of this potential transaction, and 
all materials of any kind (including opinions or other tax analyses) that are provided to you related to such structure and tax aspects, without DWS imposing any limitation of any kind. This 
authorization is effective without limitation of any kind from the commencement of our discussions. 

The data presented herein is as of March 31, 2022, unless noted otherwise, and may be outdated. All currency shown in U.S. dollars unless noted otherwise. 

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



RREEF America REIT II

/  3

2022 Annual Meeting & proxy summary

1) Re-elect Current Board of Directors

2) Approve Fund Merger & Restructure

— Broaden and diversify the fund’s investor base by implementing a more modern structure, 

consistent with other NFI-ODCE index funds.

— The restructured fund will initially have two investor access points:

 A Delaware limited partnership (the “Main Fund”) with a new tiered fee structure  Expect 

the vast majority of investors in this vehicle. 

 A REIT for US Tax Purposes (“PF REIT”) with total fee of 95 bps.  For certain investors 

requiring to invest directly in a REIT. 

— Proxy Vote is due by July 20, 2022.  For investors that want to elect PF REIT, a PF REIT Form 

must be returned by September 30, 2022. 

Summary of Proxy Measures

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.

Thank you for voting your 2022 proxy



RREEF America REIT II

\ 4

Flagship Core Open-end Real Estate Fund

23 years of strong performance; seeking continued success

1 Annualized performance for RREEF America REIT II and NFI-ODCE are time-weighted  as of March 31, 2022.   

The photographs depicted above and on subsequent pages are not intended to be representative of all assets in the portfolio. For more information on all assets, including those not shown herein, 

please contact us. Past performance is not indicative of future returns. 

Sources: NFI-ODCE (see Performance Notes), DWS. As of March 31, 2022. 

Industrial

Office

Residential

Ridge Road, Piscataway, NJ Hyde Square Apartments, Bellevue, WA

Retail

100 Northern Avenue, Boston, MA Westwinds of Boca, Boca Raton, FL

—$16.2 billion net asset value; $19.0 

billion gross real estate market value

—126 assets with approximately 1,400 

tenants; 94% core occupancy

—Outperforming NFI-ODCE (gross and 

net of fees) for trailing 1-, 3-, 5-, 7- and 

10-year total returns and since 

inception
1

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Appendix

— Statement of Account

— Fund Details

— Biographies

— Disclosures

01 Firm Overview

02

03

U.S. Real Estate Outlook and Strategy

RREEF America REIT II: 

Flagship Core Open-End Fund

04

Table of Contents



Firm overview01



Q4 2021 Results for DWS:

Revenues

*Based on adjusted numbers 

DWS at a glance

\ 7

Diverse: $1.1 trillion in AUM across active, passive and alternatives

— $130.8 billion in alternatives

— $74.6 billion in private real estate

Global: 3,600 employees across 60 nationalities and 25 countries

Commitment: 

— DWS has a long tradition of sustainable and responsible investing 

— Fiduciary culture driven by commitment to diversity & inclusion

Results: 

— 2021 was the third consecutive year of strong growth

— Record net flows and Assets under Management (AuM) 

Global Asset Manager with over $1 trillion in AUM

Source: DWS, preliminary as of December 31, 2021 unless noted otherwise. Past performance is not a guarantee of future 

results. Not all DWS products and services are offered in all jurisdictions and availability is subject to local regulatory 

restrictions and requirements. Numbers may not sum due to rounding. There is no assurance that investment objectives 

can be achieved.

FY 2021

Change vs 

FY 2020

€47.7bn �€17.4bn

€2.7bn �22%

58.1% �6.4ppt

€1.1bn �43%

DWS annual results reflect a shift in focus to 

transformation and growth

Profit 

Before Tax

Cost-income 

Ratio*

Net Flows 

AUM by asset class AUM by region & client type

Active Fixed 

Income, 25%

Cash, 9%

Passive, 26%Active Equity, 13%

Alternatives, 12%

Active SQI, 8%

Active Multi-Asset,

7%

$1.0

trillion

Germany, 44%

EMEA 

(ex Germany), 26%

APAC, 5% 

Americas, 25% $1.0

trillion

Source: DWS Finance as of 12/31/2021.

Based on quarter-end FX of 1.1372 EUR/USD.

Past performance does not guarantee future results.

Retail

45%

Institutional

55%

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Private real estate — Americas

\ 8

Overview

1 Composite performance shown is gross and net of fees as of December 31, 2021. NPI = NCREIF Property Index, which is gross of fees. Please see “Performance Notes” and the GIPS Composite Report 

at the end of the presentation for further information, including details on the return methodology for the Composite.  

Source: DWS. As of December 31, 2021. Diversification based on gross asset value by primary use. Allocations are subject to change. Allocations may not sum to 100% due to rounding. Past 

performance is not indicative of future results. 

U.S. Office Locations

Platform diversification by sector & region

By Sector

At a glance

— $33.2 billion in U.S. private real estate AUM

— 332 properties, 98.9 million square feet of NRA

— 125 professionals and staff across 9 offices

— Over 300 institutional clients

— Long-term track record of core outperformance

By Region

Industrial, 37%Other, 1%

Retail, 13%

Apartments,

23%

Office, 26%

West, 47%Midwest, 6%

South, 19%

East, 28%

— Chicago

— New York

— San Francisco

— Atlanta

— Boston

— Costa Mesa

— Dallas

— Marina del Rey

— SeattlePerformance results1

Supplemental: Americas Real Estate – U.S. Direct Core Composite

2
5
.8

%

1
1
.5

%

1
0
.4

%

2
4
.7

%

1
0
.6

%

9
.4

%

1
7
.7

%

8
.4

%

7
.8

%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

1 Year 3 Year 5 Year

DWS Composite - Gross DWS Composite - Net NPI

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



— RREEF America REIT II: Total return performance exceeds NFI-ODCE for trailing 1-, 3-, 5-, 7- and 10-year 

periods as well as since the Fund’s inception (gross and net of fees)1

— RREEF Core Plus Industrial Fund: Outperforming the NPI-Industrial benchmark over 3-year and since 

inception2

— Separate Accounts: Separate account aggregate outperforming NFI-ODCE for trailing 1-, 3-, 5-, 10-, 20-, 

30- year periods3

Performance

Americas real estate business

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.

\ 9

First quarter 2022 update & highlights

(1) Annualized performance for RREEF America REIT II and NFI-ODCE are time-weighted  as of March 31, 2022.   
(2) Based on gross of fee returns for the Lower Fund;  net fees vary for each investor as a result of different fee structures and the Fund’s benchmark (NPI-Industrial) is only reported on a gross basis.
(3) Based on leveraged annualized performance time-weighted as of December 31, 2021 for separate accounts managed by RREEF America L.L.C.
(4) Does not include dividend reinvestments.
(5) Represents transaction activity across all fund and separate account portfolios.
Currency shown in US$. NFI-ODCE = NCREIF Fund Index Open End Diversified Core Equity. Past performance is not indicative of future results. See “Performance Notes” and “Important Information” for
more details. Sources: DWS, NCREIF. As of March 31, 2022.

— Open-End Funds: $1.2 billion raised over trailing 12 months, including $469 million in Q1 2022 from 13 

commitments4

— Equity & Debt Separate Accounts: $348 million raised over trailing 12 months, including $37 million in 

Q1 2022

Capital formation

— Acquisitions:  $3.13 billion in 32 transactions over the last 12 months, including $202 million in three 

transactions closed during Q1 2022 

— Dispositions:  $1.64 billion in 14 dispositions over the last 12 months, including $61.0 million in two sales 

closed during Q1 2022

— Financings: $1.4 billion in 25 debt financing transactions over last 12-months, including $97.7 million in 

three transactions closed during Q1 2022

Transaction activity5



34.6%

14.7%

12.6% 13.0%

10.6% 10.5%
9.5%

28.5%

11.3%
9.9%

10.9%

8.7% 8.6% 8.0%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year 20 Year 30 Year 40 Year

U.S. Core Real Estate – Leveraged Property Performance Aggregate NFI-ODCE

+610 bps +340 bps +270 bps +210 bps +190 bps +190 bps +150 bps

Proven long-term results

\ 10

Delivering attractive U.S. core real estate performance for funds and separate accounts over four 

decades

As of March 31, 2022. Source: DWS. 

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Performance is calculated using a levered property level return formula for an aggregate of all U.S. core real estate accounts. Please note that this 

differs from the Firm's Americas Real Estate - U.S. Direct Core Composite which is a GIPS Composite. Please see the GIPS Composite Report at the end of the presentation for further information, 

including details on the return methodology for the Composite. See “Performance Notes” for additional details. Performance shown is gross of fees and actual returns earned by an investor will be 

reduced by advisory fees and other expenses. Please see "Important Information" for details regarding the effect of fees on performance. NFI-ODCE = NCREIF Fund Index - Open End Diversified Core 

Equity. 

Supplemental information: U.S. Core real estate platform—leveraged property performance aggregate (gross of fees)

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



U.S. Real estate outlook 

and strategy
02

Certain information in this presentation constitutes forward-looking statements. Due to various risks, 

uncertainties and assumptions made in our analysis, actual events or results or the actual performance of the 

markets covered by this research report may differ materially from those described. The information herein 

reflects our current view only, is subject to change and is not intended to be promissory or relied upon by the 

reader. There can be no certainty that events will turn out as we have opined herein. An investment in real estate 

involves high degree of risk, including possible loss of principal amount invested, and is suitable only for 

sophisticated investor who can bear such losses.



Overview of Investment Process

For illustrative purposes only. There is no guarantee the investment objective can be achieved. IC = Investment Committee. Source: DWS. As of December 31, 2021.

An integrated three-prong approach seeking attractive long-term, risk-adjusted performance on 

behalf of our clients

1. Research & Strategy 2. Portfolio Planning (Phase II) 3. Execution (Phases III - V)

/ 12

Risk & Performance Analysis

— Risk Factor Monitoring

— Performance Attribution

Continuous Feedback to Improve Process and Results

Realized 

Returns

— Dispositions

— Recapitali-

zations

Active 

Management

— Leasing

— Capital    

Investment

— Refinancings

Portfolio 

Construction

— Acquisitions

— Financing

Client Strategic 

Plan

— Disposition Plan

— Investment Plan

— Financing Plan

Current Portfolio

Characteristics

— Hold/Sell Analysis

— Leverage  

Characteristics

— Diversification 

Factors

Client Objectives 

& Constraints

— Risk/Return Goals

— Allocation 

Preferences

— Holding Periods

Client Target 

PortfolioHouse View

— Strategic 

Outlook

— House Portfolio

House Forecasts

— Markets

— Sectors

— Benchmarks 

“Regional Councils”

House-Wide 

Qualitative Inputs

— Transactions

— Asset 

Management

— Portfolio 

Management

IC Approval IC Approval Various IC Approvals

Market Signals

— Momentum

— REITs

— Mean Reversion

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Shifting sands

\ 13

Uncertain and volatile macro environment

Source: DWS. As of December 2021. Opinions and estimates, including forecasts of conditions, involve a number of assumptions that may not prove valid and are subject to change. No representation 

or warranty is made that any portfolio or investment described herein would yield favorable investment results. There is no guarantee that forecast will materialize. There can be no assurance that the 

above targets can be achieved.

Surging 

inflation
Rising 

interest rates

Economic 

uncertainty

What does it mean 

for real estate?

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



We’ve been here before

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.
\ 14

War, Energy Shocks, Volatility… Stagflation

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics (consumer price index); NBER (recessions). As of February 2022. Opinions and estimates, including forecasts of conditions, involve a number of assumptions that may 

not prove valid and are subject to change. No representation or warranty is made that any portfolio or investment described herein would yield favorable investment results. There is no guarantee 

that forecast will materialize. There can be no assurance that the above targets can be achieved.

Inflation and recessions (1970-2021)

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

1970 1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

 (
ye

a
r-

o
ve

r-
ye

a
r)

Recession Inflation

Arab-Israeli War: 

First Oil Shock

Iranian Revolution 

& Second Oil Shock

Vietnam War

Russia invades UkraineFed abandons

Gold Standard

Fed launches QE



End of an era?

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.
\ 15

Inflation could trigger a reversal of 40 years of falling rates

Source: Federal Reserve (Treasury yields); NBER (recessions). As of February 2022. Opinions and estimates, including forecasts of conditions, involve a number of assumptions that may not prove valid 

and are subject to change. No representation or warranty is made that any portfolio or investment described herein would yield favorable investment results. There is no guarantee that forecast will 

materialize. There can be no assurance that the above targets can be achieved.

Interest rates (1970-2021)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

1970 1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020

1
0

-Y
e

a
r 

T
re

a
su

ry
 Y

ie
ld

Recession 10-Year Treasury

Fed hikes 25 bps, 

signals 6 more in 2022

Fed Chairman Volcker lifts Fed 

Funds rate to 20%



Recession risks

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.
\ 16

The yield curve suggests this cycle could be short

Source: Bloomberg (Historical and Forward Rates), NBER (Recessions) . As of February 2022. For illustrative purposes only. Pastperformance is not indicative of future results. Opinions and estimates, 

including forecasts of conditions, involve a number of assumptions that may not prove valid and are subject to change. No representation or warranty is made that any portfolio or investment 

described herein would yield favorable investment results. There is no guarantee that forecast will materialize.

Yield curve (10-year treasury yield less 3-month treasury bill) and recessions

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

1965 1969 1974 1979 1984 1989 1994 1998 2003 2008 2013 2018 2023

Y
ie

ld
 C

u
rv

e

(1
0

-Y
e

a
r 

T
re

a
su

ry
 le

ss
 3

-M
o

n
th

 T
re

a
su

ry
 B

ill
)

Recession Yield Curve Forward Yield Curve



Real estate cycles over time

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.
\ 17

Commercial real estate performed well in the 1970s

Source: Federal Reserve (real estate prices); NBER (recessions). As of December 2021. Past performance is not indicative of future results. Opinions and estimates, including forecasts of conditions, 

involve a number of assumptions that may not prove valid and are subject to change. No representation or warranty is made that any portfolio or investment described herein would yield favorable 

investment results. There is no guarantee that forecast will materialize. There can be no assurance that the above targets can be achieved.

Commercial real estate prices (1950-2021)

-30%

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

1950 1955 1960 1965 1970 1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020

P
ri

ce
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 (

ye
a

r-
o

ve
r-

ye
a

r,
 4

Q
 M

A
)

Recession Commercial Real Estate 1970-1984 1986-2021

8.0%

3.9%



Real estate cycles over time

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.
\ 18

Residential real estate performed well in the 1970s

Source: National Association of Realtors (home prices); NBER (recessions). As of December 2021. Past performance is not indicative of future results. Opinions and estimates, including forecasts of 

conditions, involve a number of assumptions that may not prove valid and are subject to change. No representation or warranty is made that any portfolio or investment described herein would yield 

favorable investment results. There is no guarantee that forecast will materialize. There can be no assurance that the above targets can be achieved.

Home prices (1970-2021)

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

1970 1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020

P
ri

ce
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 (

ye
a

r-
o

ve
r-

ye
a

r,
 4

Q
 M

A
)

Recession Single-Family Homes 1970-1984 1986-2021

8.4%
4.5%

30-Year Mortgage: 

18.4%

30-Year Mortgage: 7.3%



Why was real estate resilient?

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.
\ 19

Inflation supports (nominal) spending power

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis (income); NBER (recessions). As of December 2021. Past performance is not indicative of future results. Opinions and estimates, including forecasts of conditions, 

involve a number of assumptions that may not prove valid and are subject to change. No representation or warranty is made that any portfolio or investment described herein would yield favorable 

investment results. There is no guarantee that forecast will materialize. There can be no assurance that the above targets can be achieved.

Business and personal income growth (1970-2021)

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

1970 1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020

P
e

r 
C

a
p

it
a

 G
ro

ss
 I

n
co

m
e

 G
ro

w
th

 (
ye

a
r-

o
ve

r-

ye
a

r,
 4

Q
 M

A
)

Recession Gross Income 1970-1984 1986-2021

8.6%

3.8%



Why was real estate resilient?

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.
\ 20

Inflation pushes up construction (and replacement) costs

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics (construction materials); NBER (recessions). As of February 2022. Past performance is not indicative of future results. Opinions and estimates, including forecasts of 

conditions, involve a number of assumptions that may not prove valid and are subject to change. No representation or warranty is made that any portfolio or investment described herein would yield 

favorable investment results. There is no guarantee that forecast will materialize. There can be no assurance that the above targets can be achieved.

Construction material cost growth (1970-2021)

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

1970 1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 C
o

st
 G

ro
w

th

(1
2

-m
o

n
th

 M
A

)

Recession Construction Materials Costs 1970-1984 1986-2021

7.1%
2.6%



Higher cap rates?

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.
\ 21

Interest rates don’t rise in a vacuum

Past performance is not indicative of future results.

Sources: NCREIF (cap rates); Federal Reserve (Fed hiking cycle). As of December 2021.

Cap rate and fed rate hiking cycles Cap rate theory

IRR = RISK-FREE RATE (RFR) + RISK PREMIUM (RP)

IRR = CAP RATE + RENT GROWTH

??
CAP RATE = RFR  +   RP   – RENT GROWTH 

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

10%

1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020

C
a

p
 R

a
te

 (
4

-q
u

a
rt

e
r 

m
o

vi
n

g
 a

ve
ra

g
e

)

Fed Hiking Cycle Cap Rate



1. Industrial

 Structural growth (e-commerce, supply-chain)

2. Residential

 Structural growth (Millennials)

 Cyclically defensive (non-discretionary)

 Inflation protection (1-year leases)

3. Sun Belt / Mountain West

 Structural growth (migration)

 Reduced supply risks (construction costs)

4. Tech Markets

 Structural growth (tech industry)

Winners

Implications for investment strategy

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.
\ 22

Seeking defensive growth

Source: DWS. As of April 2022. Opinions and estimates, including forecasts of conditions, involve a number of assumptions that may not prove valid and are subject to change. No representation or 

warranty is made that any portfolio or investment described herein would yield favorable investment results. There is no guarantee that forecast will materialize. There can be no assurance that the 

above targets can be achieved.

1. Commodity Office

� Structural headwinds (work-from-home)

� Cyclically sensitive (high-beta)

� Capex (volatility, construction costs)

2. Long-term Fixed-rate Leases

� Cyclically defensive

� Fixed cash flow (inflation)

� Cap Rate pressure (interest rates)

Losers



Return dispersion by sector

\ 23

Large variation across sectors and subsectors

(1) National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries Property Index (“NPI”).  Source: NPI as of Q1 2022.  NPI data reflects the returns of institutional quality real estate in specific sectors and does 

not reflect the use of leverage or the impact of management and advisory fees. Past performance is not indicative of future results. Assumptions made in our analysis, actual events or results may not 

affect the actual performance of the markets covered and may differ from those presented.  

NCREIF Total returns by sector1

NCREIF Total Returns by Subsector (Q1 2022)1

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.

Apartment Industrial Retail Office

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
2022 

Q1

17.1% 23.0% 21.2% 19.1% 20.5% -4.1% -10.9% 18.2% 15.5% 11.6% 12.9% 13.4% 15.3% 12.3% 13.1% 14.3% 13.4% 11.8% 43.3% 51.9%

8.9% 13.0% 20.3% 17.0% 14.9% -5.8% -17.5% 12.6% 14.6% 11.2% 12.3% 13.1% 14.9% 9.0% 6.2% 6.9% 6.6% 1.8% 19.9% 24.1%

8.2% 12.1% 20.0% 14.6% 13.5% -7.3% -17.9% 11.7% 13.8% 10.7% 10.4% 11.5% 12.5% 7.3% 6.0% 6.1% 5.5% 1.6% 6.1% 7.1%

5.7% 12.0% 19.5% 13.3% 11.4% -7.3% -19.1% 9.4% 13.8% 9.5% 9.9% 10.3% 12.0% 6.2% 5.7% 2.2% 1.9% -7.5% 4.2% 6.8%

21.9%

33.4%
25.3%

19.5%

52.1%
46.1%

10.9%
3.7%

10.2% 9.5% 5.2%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Warehouse Flex / R&D Garden Low-Rise NPI High-Rise Suburban Office Neighborhood

& Community

Power Centers CBD Office Malls

T
ra

ili
n

g
 F

o
u

r 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r

T
o

ta
l R

e
tu

rn



Outlook for real estate sectors

\ 24

Favor industrial and residential over retail and office

Notes: Upward green arrow denotes a positive DWS research rating. Upward sloping green arrow denotes an improving DWS research rating. Sideways yellow arrow denotes a neutral DWS research 

rating. Downward sloping red arrow denotes a deteriorating DWS research rating. Downward red arrow denotes a negative DWS research rating.

Source: DWS. As of April 2022. Forecasts are based on assumptions, estimates, views and hypothetical models or analyses, which might prove inaccurate or incorrect. 

Pros Cons / risks House view

Industrial — E-commerce

— Inventory rebuilding

— Supply chain resilience

— Pent-up Demand

—Record supply

—Low cap rates

Residential —Housing shortage

—Inflation hedge

—Post-COVID payback?

Retail —Consumer-led recovery

—Attractive relative cap rates

—E-commerce

—Long duration (inflation risk)

Office —Stable valuations

—Limited distress

—High vacancies / falling demand

—Work-From-Home (WFH)

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Sector allocation views and rationale

\ 25

Maintain strong overweight to Industrial and underweight to office

1 NPI and ODCE weights as of September 2021. ODCE weights calculated as gross real estate value at ownership share. Due to rounding, weights may not equal 100%.

Sources: NCREIF and DWS. As of December 2021. No assurance can be given that any forecast or target will be achieved.

Sector

NPI 

Weights1

ODCE 

Weights1 Research Perspective

House 

Portfolio

Active Bet

(vs ODCE)

Recommended 

Range

Apartment 26% 28% – Lowest rental vacancy rates since the mid-1980s.

– Shorter leases provide an effective inflation hedge.

– Preference for garden-style product.

32% +4% 27% – 37%

Industrial 26% 25% – Booming e-commerce supporting demand.

– Inventory rebuilding and supply-chain resilience add further 

support.

– Low yields support development strategies.

36% +11% 31% – 41%

Office 31% 28% – Stable cash flows and values despite work-from-home, high 

vacancies.

– Downside risks as leases roll over time.

– Pockets of opportunity (medical, life science, tech markets).

20% (8%) 15% – 25%

Retail 16% 13% – Malls still challenged by e-commerce.

– Necessity and service-oriented strip centers more immune;

benefit from consumer-led economic recovery and 

suburbanization.

– Attractive relative yields.

11% (2%) 6% – 16%

Other 0% 6% – Focus on single-family rentals (SFR). 1% (5%) 0% – 6%

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Target markets

\ 26

South and Mountain West expected to outperform

Red denotes “underweight”; green denotes “overweight; orange denotes “market weight”. Opinions and estimates, including forecasts of conditions, involve a number of assumptions that may not 

prove valid and are subject to change. No representation or warranty is made that any portfolio or investment described herein would yield favorable investment results.

Source: DWS. As of December 2021. Past performance is not indicative of future results. There is no guarantee that forecast will materialize. There can be no assurance that the above targets can be 

achieved.

Residential Industrial Office Retail

House View

Seattle

Atlanta

Austin

Chicago

Dallas

Denver

Houston

Minneapolis

Phoenix

San Diego

Nashville

Baltimore

Boston

Raleigh

Tampa

Philadelphia/Central PA

Charlotte

Washington DC

Orlando

West Palm Beach 

Ft. Lauderdale
Miami

Portland

San Jose

Riverside

Oakland

Los Angeles

San Francisco

Orange County

New York

Jacksonville

Las Vegas

Reno

Salt Lake City

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Model portfolio performance

\ 27

House view adding 100 bps - 200 bps of outperformance

Model portfolio return: Sector Return is equal-weighted average of target market returns. Model Portfolio Return is sector-allocation-weighted average of Sector Returns. Performance attribution 

Excess = Model Portfolio – NPI; Sector Allocation Effect = Sector Allocation; * NPI Sector Return - NPI Return; Market Selection Effect = Excess - Sector Allocation Effect.

Note: These model portfolios and percentage allocations are shown for illustrative purposes only and reflect hypothetical performance results. Please note there are many inherent limitations in the 

use of hypothetical performance results, such as they are generally prepared with the benefit of hindsight, they do not involve financial risk, and no hypothetical trading record can completely account 

for the impact of financial risk in actual trading. There are numerous other factors related to the markets in general or to the implementation of any specific trading program which cannot be fully 

accounted for in the preparation of hypothetical performance results and all of which can adversely affect actual trading results. The hypothetical returns shown do not reflect the deduction of 

investment advisory fees a client’s return will be reduced by advisory fees and any other expenses that may be incurred in the management of its investment advisory account. Please read “Important 

Information” for the effect of fees on performance.  No representation is being made that any account will or is likely to achieve profits or losses similar to those shown.

Model portfolio returns

1-year forward returns 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Model Portfolio 15.9% 11.5% 11.8% 13.1% 14.6% 9.8% 8.8% 8.6% 8.4% 3.6% 25.0%

NPI 14.3% 10.5% 11.0% 11.8% 13.3% 8.0% 7.0% 6.7% 6.4% 1.6% 17.7%

Excess Return (bps) 167.9 92.3 80.7 127.0 128.1 179.5 183.8 190.3 194.3 201.1 734.3

Sector Allocation (bps) 6.6 14.3 30.3 19.6 18.4 29.7 60.7 81.7 71.7 143.9 615.8

Market Selection (bps) 161.3 78.0 50.4 107.4 109.7 149.8 123.1 108.6 122.6 57.2 118.5

3-year forward returns 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Model Portfolio 12.8% 11.9% 13.3% 12.2% 10.5% 8.7% 8.5% 6.9%

NPI 11.9% 11.1% 12.0% 11.0% 9.4% 7.2% 6.7% 4.9%

Excess Return (bps) 88.0 75.9 125.5 121.1 112.6 152.5 175.3 200.0

Sector Allocation (bps) 23.7 24.2 29.1 29.4 43.6 38.9 53.4 66.1

Market Selection (bps) 64.2 51.7 96.4 91.6 69.0 113.6 121.9 133.9

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



RREEF America REIT II03

One City Block, Denver, CO Las Olas Centre, Ft. Lauderdale, FL Napa Logistics 400 Boone Drive, 

American Canyon, CA

Flagship Core Open-End Fund
Note: The photographs depicted above and on subsequent pages are not intended to be representative of all 

assets in the portfolio. For more information on all assets, including those not shown herein, please contact DWS.



RREEF America REIT II—Fund Profile

\ 29

— $16.2 billion net asset value; $19.0 billion gross real estate market value2

— 126 assets with approximately 1,400 tenants; 94% occupancy; in-place rents 14% below market3

— Total return performance exceeds NFI-ODCE for trailing 1-, 3-, 5-, 7- and 10-year periods as well as since the Fund’s inception (gross and net of fees)4

— 2021 GRESB Results: 5 Star Fund and ranked 9th of 48 U.S. Diversified Core

Strong performance & disciplined execution1

1 Past performance is not indicative of future results. 
2 Reflects the Fund’s investment in the unconsolidated joint ventures.
3 Data from Altus. Based on Q1 2022 external appraisals. 
4 Annualized performance for RREEF America REIT II and NFI-ODCE are time-weighted  as of March 31, 2022. Please note the RREEF America REIT II returns are considered preliminary subject to the 

availability of the March 31, 2022 GIPS Composite Report
5 Based on gross real estate market value and reflects the Fund’s investment in the unconsolidated joint ventures. Allocations are subject to change without notice. 

Sources: NFI-ODCE (see Performance Notes), DWS. As of March 31, 2022. 

Sectors in line with house view5 Market diversification5 Core positioning5

Industrial, 40%Retail, 12%

Office, 22%

Residential, 26%

Metro (MSA) % of Fund

Los Angeles 10%

San Francisco 10%

New York 8%

South Florida 8%

Boston 8%

Seattle 8%

Orange County 7%

Washington, D.C 5%

Chicago 4%

Core, 96%Non-Core, 4%

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



RREEF America REIT II

\ 30

2022 Fund objectives and year to date progress

1 Based on current levels of inflation, DWS believes that its current portfolio of investments and additional investments that current market conditions will permit it to acquire will generate capital 

appreciation and annual income that will be sufficient to achieve the target return rates. DWS may utilize debt financing on a floating rate and/or fixed rate basis, as necessary. There is no guarantee 

the 2022 targets shown will materialize. There is no guarantee that the 2022 Strategic Investment Plan targets will materialize. See the Fund’s 2022 Strategic Investment Plan for further information.

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Source: DWS. As of March 31, 2022. 

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.

2022 Targets1 2022 Year to Date Comments

Fund Total Return 10% - 12% (gross) 6.41% (gross)

Fund Income Return 3.75% - 4.25% (gross) 0.96% (gross)

Capital Raise $850M $78M
Includes reinvestments. Trailing 12 Month capital raise 

$857M.

Acquisitions $1.2B - $1.4B $35M

Dispositions $350M - $550M $42M

Leverage 20% - 22% 19.1%
Reflects debt marked-to-market and includes the Fund’s 

share of all joint venture debt and total assets.  

Occupancy 92% 94%
Includes all operational properties and is gross real estate 

market value weighted. 



RREEF America REIT II 

\ 31

Governance and management team

Source: DWS. As of March 31, 2022.

Experienced, stable and tenured team of dedicated investment professionals

RREEF America REIT II Independent Board of Directors

Americas Real Estate Investment Committee

W. Todd Henderson 

RREEF America REIT II Board of Directors & Investment Committee

Portfolio Management Team

John Ehli

Co-Lead Portfolio Manager

Jay Miller

Co-Lead Portfolio Manager

Norton O’Meara

Portfolio Manager 

Joshua Lenhert   

Portfolio Manager

Janice Lee

Portfolio Manager

Joe Cappelletti

Chief Financial Officer

Megan Hess

Senior Fund Finance 

Controller

Portfolio and Asset Management

Property Specialists

Fund Operations

4 Investment Professionals

Broader Real Estate Resources

Asset Management Capital Markets ESG & Sustainability Global Client Group Operations Research & Strategy Transactions

19 31

16 32 16 26

28 37 20 20 11 11 37 37

Years with industry #Years with firm #

12 16

Fund Governance and Oversight

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



5 out of 5-star GRESB Fund in 2021

45% of portfolio benchmarked for energy and carbon (based on floor area 

coverage as of 4/15/2022)

17 ESG & Sustainability projects completed in 2021

6 LED lighting audits/retrofits planned for 2022

2 Water Efficiency projects planned for 2022

2 Fitwel certified buildings; 10 WELL Health-Safety rated buildings

26% estimated return on cost on $8.0 million of investment ESG projects

since 20142

ESG Scorecard: RREEF America REIT II

\ 32

As of Q1 2022

1 Source: DWS, Measurabl, ENERGY STAR, data through March 31, 2022, except GRESB rating (2020 data). 2 Year end 2021 figures. Return on cost based on projects where we have projected savings 

data available. 3 Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark (“GRESB”). 4 Average reporting on Diversified, U.S. based, Non-listed, Core Funds. 5 Building certifications include LEED, BREEAM, IREM, 

and ENERGY STAR. Note: This scorecard is provided for illustrative purposes only. The information provided above is not intended to be representative of all assets in the portfolio. For further 

information on all assets, including those not shown, please contact DWS. Past performance is not indicative of future results.

Performance highlights1 ESG strategy overview

Energy and Carbon Benchmarking

Smart Building Technology and Optimization

Energy Efficiency and LED Installations

Renewable Energy

Water Conservation

Tenant Comfort, Health, and Wellbeing

Climate Resiliency and Risk Protection

GRESB Profile3 Green building certification5

Recognized as 5 out of 5-star Fund in 2021

2021 – Peer Group Comparison4 9/48

2021 – Overall Score 88/100

2021 – Management 29/30

2021 – Performance 58/70

$6.5 billion in green label assets

Property Type % of Property Type Count

Office 79% 11

Multifamily 28% 8

Retail 42% 8

Industrial 4% 3

Total 24% 30

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



RREEF America REIT II

\ 33

— Total return performance exceeds NFI-ODCE for trailing 1-, 3-, 5-, 7- and 10-year periods as well as since the Fund’s inception (gross and net of fees)1

— NCREIF Fund Rankings: Top quartile over the trailing 10- year period2

Annualized Performance1 (unaudited)

1 Annualized performance for RREEF America REIT II and NFI-ODCE are time-weighted  as of March 31, 2022. 
2  Based on NCREIF Q1 2022 fund manager rankings which includes 17 funds (10-year).

Returns shown are fund level, and gross and net of asset management and accrued performance fees. Individual client returns may vary from overall Fund results. Returns include significant 

unrealized appreciation or depreciation. See "Performance Notes" for further information with respect to NFI-ODCE and “Important Information” for details regarding the effect of fees on 

performance. Past performance is not indicative of future results. 

Sources: DWS and NCREIF. As of March 31, 2022.

Supplemental information: RREEF America REIT II—Annualized performance

Gross of fees

6
.4

%

3
0

.2
%

1
2

.7
%

1
0

.8
%

1
1

.0
%

1
1

.9
%

8
.9

%

7
.4

%

2
8

.5
%

1
1

.3
%

9
.9

%

1
0

.2
%

1
0

.9
%

8
.9

%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

1Q22 1-Year 3-Year 5-Year 7-Year 10-Year Since

Inception

(10/98)

RREEF America REIT II - Gross NFI-ODCE - Gross
6

.2
%

2
9

.0
%

1
1

.6
%

9
.8

%

1
0

.0
%

1
0

.8
%

8
.0

%

7
.1

%

2
7

.3
%

1
0

.3
%

8
.9

%

9
.2

%

9
.9

%

7
.9

%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

1Q22 1-Year 3-Year 5-Year 7-Year 10-Year Since

Inception

(10/98)

RREEF America REIT II - Net NFI-ODCE - Net

Net of fees

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Sector exposure 

\ 34

Well positioned with strong industrial overweight

1 Reflects 1Q 2022 diversification adjusted to exclude dispositions on the market and include the Fund’s acquisition commitments and projected non-core capital obligations.

RARII and NFI-ODCE percentages reflect gross real estate market values. RARII reflects the Fund's investment in the unconsolidated joint ventures. NFI-ODCE weights calculated as gross real estate 

value at ownership share. Target ranges are based on 2022 House Portfolio Update. There can be no assurance that the above targets will be achieved. See “Performance Notes” for further 

information with respect to NFI-ODCE. Allocations are subject to change without notice. Source: DWS and NCREIF. As of March 31, 2022.

Industrial sector weightings Office sector weightings

Residential sector weightings Retail sector weightings

Continued emphasis on residential acquisitions throughout 2022

15%

25%
22%

21%

26%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

House View Fund Fund with Pending NFI-ODCE

31%

41% 40% 40%

28%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

House View Fund Fund with Pending NFI-ODCE

28%

38%

26% 28% 28%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

House View Fund Fund with Pending NFI-ODCE

6%

12% 11% 12%
16%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

House View Fund Fund with Pending NFI-ODCE

1

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.

1

11



RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.

\ 35

RREEF America REIT II and NFI-ODCE percentages reflect gross real estate market values. RREEF America REIT II reflects the Fund's investment in the unconsolidated joint ventures. NFI-ODCE reflected 

100% gross real estate values from 2017-2019. NFI-ODCE in 2020 and 2021 is calculated as gross real estate value at ownership share. Target ranges are based on the House Portfolio Update from the 

initial Investment Plan in each respective year. There can be no assurance that the above targets will be achieved. Allocations are subject to change without notice. Source: DWS and NCREIF. 

As of December 31, 2021.

Office Residential

Industrial Retail

Portfolio construction supported by research, strategy & execution

Fund historically aligned with house view

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

House View Target RAR2

10%

20%

30%

40%

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

House View Target RAR2

10%

15%

20%

25%

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

House View Target RAR2

20%

30%

40%

50%

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

House View Target RAR2



Ten largest assets by market value3

RREEF America REIT II

\ 36

Outperformance through strategic conviction

1 Includes the Fund’s share of unconsolidated joint venture debt.  
2 Includes the Fund’s share of the debt and total assets of all joint ventures.
3 Data as of Q4 2021. MSCI provides independent attribution analysis services to core open-end real estate funds, including RREEF America REIT II. The benchmark used by MSCI for its attribution 

analysis of this fund includes 21 of 27 NFI-ODCE Funds. This differs from the NFI-ODCE benchmark used for the RREEF America REIT II Composite which includes 27 of 27 NFI-ODCE Funds. See 

"Performance Notes" for further information with respect to NFI-ODCE. 

Fund’s sector and market diversification, as well as average investment size, reflect the Fund’s investment in the unconsolidated joint ventures.

Sources: DWS and NCREIF. Past performance is not indicative of future results. As of December 31, 2021.

Sector diversification

Sector

2022 

DWS 

House 

View 4Q21 4Q16 Difference

Office 20% 23% 39% -16%

Industrial 36% 38% 20% +18%

Retail 11% 12% 20% -8%

Residential 33% 27% 21% +6%

Market diversification

Added target markets

Raleigh

Tampa

Phoenix

Salt Lake City

Reduced gateway markets

New York

Chicago

San Francisco

Washington, D.C

4Q16 4Q21

Property Count 100 126

Average Investment Size $116M $144M

Weighted Average Interest 
Rate1 3.87% 3.14%

LTV2 21.4% 20.4%

BenchmarkFund

4th QTR, 

25.24%

4th QTR, 

28.63%

BenchmarkFund

2nd QTR,

15.11%
2nd QTR,

16.48%

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.

Ten biggest positive contributing assets3



Geographic exposure

\ 37

Diversified and weighted towards primary markets1

1  Based on DWS classification of metro areas. 
2  Reflects the Fund’s investment in the unconsolidated joint ventures. 

Source: DWS. Data as of March 31, 2022.

Primary markets

Secondary markets

Size of fund exposure2 

(gross real estate value)

< $50M

$50M – $100M

$500M – $1B

$250M – $500M

$100M – $250M

> $1B

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.

NY/NNJ/LI

Minneapolis

Charlotte

ColumbusDenver

Orlando
Austin

Dallas

Seattle

Portland

Chicago

Baltimore

Boston

Washington, D.C.

Atlanta

Jacksonville

South Florida

SF Bay Area

LA/OC

Riverside

Indianapolis

Pittsburgh
Harrisburg

Philadelphia

BirminghamPhoenix

Raleigh

Tampa

Allentown



Debt profile1

\ 38

Low LTV with two maturities through 2022

1 Past performance is not indicative of future results. Reflects 100% value of debt for all consolidated assets and the Fund’s share of debt for the unconsolidated joint ventures.  
2 Total Debt reflects fund’s share of all debt. LTV reflects the fund’s share of all debt as a percentage of the fund’s share of total assets.  
3 Includes debt valuation adjustments.  
4 Weighted average interest rate of fixed and floating rate debt.  
5 Includes amortization.

This information is a forecast and due to a variety of uncertainties and assumptions made in our analysis, actual events or results or the actual performance of the markets covered may differ from 

those presented. Past performance is not indicative of future results. Source: DWS. As of March 31, 2022.

Debt profile Future debt maturities (as % of total debt)5

Total Debt2: Market3/Book $3.90 / $3.93 billion

LTV2: Market3/Book 19.1% / 19.2%

Fixed vs. Floating Rate Debt 90% / 10%

Unsecured vs. Secured Debt 74% / 26%

Unencumbered Assets $17.17 billion

Blended Interest Rate4 3.15%

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.

2%

10%

12%

7%

9%

12%

8% 8%

16%

11%

5%

0%

3%

5%

8%

10%

13%

15%

18%

20%

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032



Improved debt structure

\ 39

Improved weighted average interest rate while extending the Fund’s average maturity over the 

past several years

1  Reflects 100% value of debt for all consolidated assets and the Fund’s share of debt for the unconsolidated joint ventures

Note:  Weighted average interest rate comprised of fixed and floating rate debt. Forecasts are based on assumptions, estimates, views and hypothetical models or analyses, which might prove 

inaccurate or incorrect. Past performance is not indicative of future results. 

Source: DWS.  As of March 31, 2022.

Weighted average interest rate/year to maturity1

4.84%

4.43%

4.18%

3.87% 3.80% 3.79%
3.69%

3.18% 3.14% 3.15%

3.1

3.9

4.2

5.3
5.1

6.3

5.8

6.3

5.8
5.6

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

5.0

5.5

6.0

6.5

7.0

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

5.50%

6.00%

6.50%

7.00%

YE 2013 YE 2014 YE 2015 YE 2016 YE 2017 YE 2018 YE 2019 YE 2020 YE 2021 22-Mar

Weighted Average Interest Rate Years to Maturity

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



\ 40

Non-core strategies within the portfolio

The information provided is not intended to be representative of all assets in the portfolio. Forecasts are based on assumptions, estimates, views and hypothetical models or analyses, which might 

prove inaccurate or incorrect. Past performance is not indicative of future results. See “Important Information” for additional disclosures. Note: The photographs depicted are not intended to be 

representative of all assets in the portfolio. No assurance can be made that portfolio objectives will be achieved or assets will form part of a future invested portfolio. For more information on all 

assets, including those not shown herein, please contact DWS. 

Source: DWS. As of March 31, 2022. 

Airport Road Commercial Park
Bath, PA

Industrial Development, 452,400 sf

Estimated Project Cost: 
$88 million

Embedded value:

— To-be-built modern Class A industrial warehouse 

in a target investable market in Lehigh Valley.

Expected Completion Date: Q1 2023

Enterprise Way A & B
Lake Forest, CA

Industrial Development, 228,000 sf

Estimated Project Cost: 

$75 million

Embedded value:

— To-be-built modern Class A industrial warehouse 

in South Orange County with direct access to the 

Interstate-5 Freeway and Route 241.

Expected Completion Date: Q1 2023

Legacy Multifamily Joint Venture Program 
Residential Development

Total Projected Development Budget: 

$400 million

Embedded value:

— Joint venture development program with Legacy 

to develop approximately $400 million of multifamily 

product across various target markets throughout the 

country.

Expected Completion Date: 2022-2024

Homestead at Hamlin Lakes
Winter Garden, FL

Residential Development, 373 units

Estimated Project Cost: 

$84 million

Embedded value:

— To-be-built five building garden apartment 

community located in what we consider to be a 

supply constrained growing submarket near Orlando. 

Estimated Completion Date: Q1 2023

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Income performance 

and operations



Net operating income forecast

\ 42

NOI projected to increase over 23% through 2024

1 Reflects all assets in the portfolio as of December 31, 2021 with the exception of the 2021 acquisitions, assets under development and properties identified as 2022 Planned Sales. There is no 

guarantee the planned dispositions will occur in 2022. Unconsolidated joint ventures reflected at the Fund’s ownership share.

The forecasts contained herein are based on or derived from publicly available. This information is a forecast and due to a variety of uncertainties, and assumptions made in our analysis, actual events 

or results or the actual performance of the markets covered may differ from those presented. The underlying assumptions and these views are subject to change without notice. There is no guarantee 

that projections will materialize. Source: DWS. As of December 31, 2021. 

RREEF America REIT II: Portfolio less planned dispositions1

Projected NOI growth

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.

$92 $102 $118 $123

$187 $206
$220 $237

$203 $180
$194

$229

$112 $122

$133

$140$594 $610

$665

$729

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

$700

$800

2021 Actual NOI 2022 Budgeted NOI 2023 Budgeted NOI 2024 Budgeted NOI

$
 in

 m
ill

io
n

s

Retail Industrial Office Residential Total

+2.7%
+9.1%

+9.6%



RREEF America REIT II

\ 43

Annualized income performance1 (unaudited)

1 Annualized performance for RREEF America REIT II and NFI-ODCE are time-weighted  as of March 31, 2022. 

Returns shown are fund level, and gross and net of asset management and accrued performance fees. Individual client returns may vary from overall Fund results. Returns include significant unrealized 

appreciation or depreciation. See "Performance Notes" for further information with respect to NFI-ODCE and “Important Information” for details regarding the effect of fees on performance. Past 

performance is not indicative of future results. 

Sources: DWS and NCREIF. As of March 31, 2022.

— 5.0% average annual dividend yield since inception

— To date, Fund has not missed a quarterly dividend payment to shareholders

Supplemental RREEF America REIT II vs. NFI-ODCE—Annualized income performance

Net of feesGross of fees

3
.2

%

3
.2

%

3
.2

%

3
.3

%

3
.7

%

5
.0

%

3
.0

%

3
.1

%

3
.2

%

3
.3

%

3
.6

%

4
.9

%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

1-Year 3-Year 5-Year 7-Year 10-Year Since

Inception

(10/98)

RREEF America REIT II - Net NFI-ODCE - Net

4
.2

%

4
.2

%

4
.2

%

4
.3

%

4
.7

%

5
.9

%

4
.0

%

4
.0

%

4
.1

%

4
.2

%

4
.5

%

5
.8

%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

1-Year 3-Year 5-Year 7-Year 10-Year Since

 Inception

(10/98)

RREEF America REIT II - Gross NFI-ODCE - Gross

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Transactions activity: 

Disciplined approach
The information that follows is not intended to be representative of all assets in the portfolio. For further 

information on all assets, including those not shown, please contact DWS. Past performance is not indicative of 

future results.



Q1 2022 Acquisition

\ 45

Portland Industrial Portfolio Phase II – Nicolai, Portland, OR

The asset pictured above is not necessarily representative of the Fund as a whole and other assets, not illustrated above and may be important to Fund performance. Information on those assets not 

presented is available upon request. Past performance is not indicative of future returns. No assurance can be made investment objectives will be achieved. 

Source: DWS. As of March 31, 2022.

PROPERTY ACQUISITION

Property Type: Industrial

Property Size: 236,955 sf 

Acquisition Date: February 4, 2022

Acquisition Price: $34.5 million

Ownership %: 100.0%

Why we purchased

— Phase I included three of the four portfolio assets (Anchor Park, Expressway Park and Barberton Park), and closing for Phase II (Nicolai) took place on February 

4, 2022. In total, the four asset Portland Industrial Portfolio was acquired for $190 million. 

— The property is located in what we consider to be an attractive infill submarket of Portland where users pay premiums to be able to quickly access the urban 

core and affluent residents. We believe there are no significant supply threats near the park. Guild’s Lake is a mature market with little to no new 

development sites available.

— Nicolai is in the Northwest submarket of Portland. All properties in Phase I and Phase II have proximity to the Portland International Airport, BNSF/UP 

Intermodal yards, and Portland Seaport Terminals. The buildings within the portfolio are in mature locations near the urban core which we believe are less 

susceptible to supply threats.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



RREEF America REIT II: 

2022 investment plan 
Please note: certain information on the following pages constitutes forward-looking statements. Due to various 

risks, uncertainties and assumptions made in our analysis, actual events or results or the actual performance of 

the markets covered by this presentation report may differ materially from those described. The information 

herein reflect our current views only, are subject to change, and are not intended to be promissory or relied 

upon by the reader. There can be no certainty that events will turn out as we have opined herein.



2022 Acquisition plan

\ 47

Industrial strategy: Overweight NFI-ODCE

RARII and NFI-ODCE reflect gross real estate market values. RARII reflects the Fund's investment in unconsolidated joint ventures. NFI-ODCE weights calculated as gross real estate value at ownership 

share. Target ranges are based on 2022 House Portfolio Update. There can be no assurance that the above targets will be achieved. See “Performance Notes” for further information with respect to 

NFI-ODCE. Allocations are subject to change without notice. Percentages are based on gross real estate market value. 

Source: DWS and NCREIF, per the Fund’s 2022 Strategic Investment Plan. As of March 31, 2022. 

Industrial sector weightings Target product for 2022 acquisitions

31%

40%

41%

28%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

RARII House View NFI-ODCE

— Large & Medium Bay Warehouse, assets offering near- to mid-term 

leasing exposure in high barrier markets with efficient access to larger 

population centers

— Bulk warehouse with access to key infrastructure such as highways, 

intermodal facilities and shipping ports in primary submarkets of 

target markets

— Smaller bay warehouse in high-growth urban markets 

— The Fund will add in existing markets to upgrade holdings and 

otherwise improve the portfolio

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



2022 Acquisition plan

\ 48

Residential strategy: Overweight NFI-ODCE

RARII and NFI-ODCE reflect gross real estate market values. RARII reflects the Fund's investment in unconsolidated joint ventures. NFI-ODCE weights calculated as gross real estate value at ownership 

share. Target ranges are based on 2022 House Portfolio Update. There can be no assurance that the above targets will be achieved. See “Performance Notes” for further information with respect to 

NFI-ODCE. Allocations are subject to change without notice. Percentages are based on gross real estate market value. 

Source: DWS and NCREIF, per the Fund’s 2022 Strategic Investment Plan. As of March 31, 2022. 

Residential sector weightings Target product for 2022 acquisitions

28%

26%

38%

28%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

RARII House View NFI-ODCE

— Next Generation Product with a focus on new development

— Garden, Mid-Rise, Student Housing, Prime Suburban and Single Family 

Rentals

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



2022 Acquisition plan

\ 49

Office strategy: Underweight NFI-ODCE

RARII and NFI-ODCE reflect gross real estate market values. RARII reflects the Fund's investment in unconsolidated joint ventures. NFI-ODCE weights calculated as gross real estate value at ownership 

share. Target ranges are based on 2022 House Portfolio Update. There can be no assurance that the above targets will be achieved. See “Performance Notes” for further information with respect to 

NFI-ODCE. Allocations are subject to change without notice. Percentages are based on gross real estate market value. 

Source: DWS and NCREIF, per the Fund’s 2022 Strategic Investment Plan. As of March 31, 2022. 

Office sector weightings Target product for 2022 acquisitions

15%

22%

26%
25%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

RARII House View NFI-ODCE

— Well-located, amenitized

properties with enduring 

appeal to tenants in 

markets with 

demonstrated stable 

usage

— Diversified, regional 

markets with depth of 

demand, projects 

offering close proximity 

to key transportation 

infrastructure

— High Rise, Mid-Rise & 

Low-Rise, focused on A 

locations in prime target 

markets

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



2022 Acquisition plan

\ 50

Retail strategy: Underweight NFI-ODCE

RARII and NFI-ODCE reflect gross real estate market values. RARII reflects the Fund's investment in unconsolidated joint ventures. NFI-ODCE weights calculated as gross real estate value at ownership 

share. Target ranges are based on 2022 House Portfolio Update. There can be no assurance that the above targets will be achieved. See “Performance Notes” for further information with respect to 

NFI-ODCE. Allocations are subject to change without notice. Percentages are based on gross real estate market value. 

Source: DWS and NCREIF, per the Fund’s 2022 Strategic Investment Plan. As of March 31, 2022. 

Retail sector weightings Target product for 2022 acquisitions

— Well-located, newer properties with stabilized services and daily 

needs-oriented tenancies

— Community and Neighborhood Centers, preferably grocery-anchored

— Avoid centers where tenant base may be susceptible to eroding in-

store sales due to e-commerce

6%

12%

16%

12%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

RARII House View NFI-ODCE

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Industrial

Looking ahead 

\ 51

RREEF America REIT II

There can be no assurance that the above targets can be achieved. Past performance is not indicative of future results. 

Source: DWS. March 31, 2022. The photographs depicted above are not intended to be representative of all assets in the portfolio. 

Residential

Office Retail

Ridge Road, Piscataway, NJ Hyde Square Apartments, Bellevue, WA

100 Northern Avenue, Boston, MA Westwinds of Boca, Boca Raton, FL

Focus on operations

—Projected NOI diversified among sectors

Well positioned portfolio

—Industrial overweight and growing Residential

—Sector alignment with House View

Transactions

—Pipeline in target markets, including development

—Opportunistic dispositions

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Appendix04
Statement of Account



Statement of account

\ 53

Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association

1 Investment income plus realized and unrealized gain, net of management fees, paid dividends, and dividends declared at, but reinvested after quarter end. 
2 Total Returns are time-weighted as of March 31, 2022. The NFI-ODCE returns are as of March 31, 2022. Past performance is not indicative of future results

RREEF America REIT II - As of March 31, 2022

Account summary

Inception date 10/6/2004

Total investment $154,500,000

Redemptions ($33,000,000)

Change in value1 $87,730,331

Ending net asset value $209,230,331

Performance summary2

6.4%

30.2%

12.7%
10.8%

8.6%

6.2%

29.0%

11.6% 9.8%
7.7%7.1%

27.3%

10.3%
8.9% 7.6%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Current 1Q
2022

1 Year 3 Year 5 Year Annualized
Since Inception

Account – (Gross) Account – (Net) NFI-ODCE – (Net) Preliminary

Dividend Yield Since Inception: 4.3%

Distributions summary

Dividend distributions since inception:

— Income $54,408,643

— Capital and appreciation $10,698,783

Total distributions $65,107,426

Total reinvested $39,992,144

Total paid $25,115,282

Dividend reinvestment plan

Income: Yes No

Return of capital: Yes No

Realized gain: Yes No

Shares outstanding summary

Beginning share balance: 77,417

Shares issued for additional contributions and 

reinvested dividends:

1,648,677

Shares Redeemed (402,782)

Ending share balance: 1,323,312

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Appendix
Fund details



RREEF America REIT II

\ 55

Summary of principal terms

This summary of principal terms does not constitute an offer to buy or sell the securities of the Fund. Offers are made only by delivery of a Confidential Offering Memorandum to the potential investor 

named on such memorandum. Please refer to the Confidential Offering Memorandum as well as the Fund’s governing documents for a more complete description of the Fund’s principal terms. This 

offer is open only to “accredited investors” and to certain individuals affiliated with DWS. Source: DWS. 

Legal structure RREEF America REIT II, Inc., a Maryland corporation (“RREEF America REIT II” or the “Fund”), is organized as a private real estate investment 

trust (“REIT”). The shares are freely transferable, subject to securities laws and restrictions to protect REIT status.

Term RREEF America REIT II is a commingled fund with an infinite life term. However, at any time an orderly liquidation plan of the Fund can be 

adopted by majority of the board of directors (the “Board”) and a two-thirds vote of the shareholders.

Leverage The Fund may incur debt or otherwise leverage its assets, provided such debt does not exceed, in the aggregate, 35% of the value of the 

Fund's assets at the time the leverage is placed. Downward valuation changes may cause the Fund's loan to value ratio to exceed 35% on a 

temporary basis, in which case the Fund is permitted to extend maturities, restructure and/or refinance existing debt, provided that the 

aggregate principal amount of the Fund's indebtedness does not increase as a result of the such extension, restructuring and/or refinancing.

Dividends Dividends are generally paid on a quarterly basis (subject to the discretion of the Board) and may be reinvested into the Fund.

Management fee Annual asset management fee equal to 95 basis points of the Fund’s net asset value, accrued and paid in monthly installments in arrears.

Redemption provisions The notice provision for redeeming shares of RREEF America REIT II is approximately 45 days prior to the end of the quarter, in which shares 

will be redeemed at the quarter ending value. The funding of redemption requests, all or partial, will be considered and finally determined 

by the Board based on the best interest of all of the shareholders.

Governance The Fund is governed by a seven-member Board consisting of six independent directors and one DWS affiliated member. The Board has the 

ultimate authority and responsibility for the Fund’s operations.

Shareholders’ responsibilities The shareholders meet annually to elect the Board. 

Capitalization Total portfolio size is unlimited.

Subscriptions Shares in the Fund are offered and sold only to eligible investors pursuant to a Confidential Offering Memorandum. Minimum subscriptions 

are U.S.$5,000,000 for new non-affiliated institutional investors. The Board, in its discretion, may accept investor commitments of lesser 

amounts.

Maximum Investment Size The maximum initial investment in any single property will not exceed 10% of the gross real estate market value of the portfolio.

Sector Exposure The Fund is expected to be diversified across the four major property types over the long term. No more than 50% of the portfolio’s gross 

real estate market value will be in any single property type.

Market Exposure No more than 30% of the portfolio’s gross real estate market value will be in any single metropolitan area. 

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Fund structure & governance

\ 56

—Private REIT vehicle

—Overseen by Board of Directors—six independent and 

one DWS-related

—All Directors are elected annually by the Fund's shareholders

—Board powers include:

—Approve Annual Strategic Investment Plan

—Approve Transaction Activity outside the Annual Strategic 

Investment Plan

—Approve Valuations, Distributions and Redemptions

—Approve Quarterly NAV

—Hire and Oversee Auditors/Tax Consultants

—Oversee Conflicts of Interest

—Oversee Risk Management

—Hire/Fire Investment Manager

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. Structure

RREEF America 

REIT II, Inc.

RREEF America 

REIT II, Inc.

Shareholders

RREEF America 

LLC

RREEF America 

REIT II, Inc.

Board of Directors

Investment 

Manager

Shareholders 

elect directors

Property entities

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



RREEF America REIT II, Inc.

\ 57

Board of Directors

Source: DWS. As of March 31, 2022.

Mr. Gregg A. Gonsalves
Independent

Advisory Partner with Integrated Capital LLC., a leading, hotel 

focused, private real estate advisory and investment firm and 

former Managing Director in Goldman, Sachs & Co.’s 

Real Estate Group and Mergers Leadership Group

Mr. W. Todd Henderson
DWS

Managing Director and Head of Real Estate, 

Americas for 

DWS’ Alternatives platform

Ms. Deborah McAneny
Independent

Former Chief Operating Officer of Benchmark Senior Living and 

former Executive Vice President of Structured and Alternative 

Investments for John Hancock Financial Services; former Senior Vice 

President of John Hancock’s Real Estate Investment Group

Mr. Murray McCabe
Independent

Founder and Managing Partner at Montgomery Street Partners, L.P.; 

former Global Head of Real Estate and Lodging Investment Banking 

at JPMorgan

Mr. Steven Rogers 
Independent – Chairman of Board

Founding and Managing Member of Rogers & Associates, LLC, a real 

estate investment and advisory firm and former President, Chief 

Executive Officer and Board member of Parkway Properties REIT

Mr. Brian Smith
Independent – Chairman of Audit Committee

Chief Executive Officer of BMS Real Estate Holdings and the former 

President, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Investment Officer, and a 

Director for Regency Centers Corp.; former Senior Vice President of 

Lowe Enterprises and Partner at Trammell Crow

Ms. Lenore M. Sullivan
Independent

Former partner at Perella Weinberg Partners and Associate Director 

of the Real Estate Finance and Investment Center at the University 

of Texas at Austin

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Americas real estate investment committee

\ 58

Average total industry experience of 28 years, 17 years with the firm

1 Voting member in transactions involving RREEF America REIT II. 

Source: DWS. As of March 31, 2022. 

Name Function Years with firm Years with industry

Mike Nigro Chair, CIO – Real Estate, Americas 18 26

W. Todd Henderson Head of Real Estate, Americas 19 31

Tim Ellsworth Head of Real Estate Transactions, Americas 24 39

Vikram Mehra Head of Real Estate Portfolio Management 17 23

Kevin White Head of Real Estate Research, Americas 7 18

Andy Harper West Coast Specialist, Americas 22 25

John Ehli1 Co-Lead Portfolio Manager, RREEF America REIT II 16 32

Jay Miller1 Co-Lead Portfolio Manager, RREEF America REIT II 16 26

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



RREEF America REIT II—Investor summary

\ 59

321 Institutional investors reflect broad investor base

Source: DWS.  As of March 31, 2022.

By number of institutional investorsBy dollar for institutional

Number of institutional Investors by Size (NAV)

127 

61 
47 42 44 

 -

 40

 80

 120

 160

Less than $10M $10-$25M $25-$50M $50-$100M Over $100M

Private 

2%

International 

22%
Public Pensions Plans 

20%

Union 

14%

Endowment/Foundation 

7%

Corporate Pension Plans

22%

Insurance 

13%

Private

2%

Union 

21%

Endowment/Foundation 

17%

Public Pensions Plans

14%

International 

10%

Corporate Pension Plans

23%

Insurance

13%

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Industrial portfolio

\ 60

50 investments; US$7.5 billion current market value; 29 million square feet

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Allocations are subject to change without notice. 

Source: DWS. As of March 31, 2022.

Industrial portfolio by 

property type

Industrial portfolio by region Property rating

Industrial strategy 

— Continue to improve portfolio mix through active sales program and select acquisitions

— Opportunity in infill distribution locations

— Acquisition focus on modern distribution warehouse in "high barrier" markets 

Class A, 77%Class B, 23%R&D, 1%

Warehouse, 93%

Flex Space, 6%

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.

Midwest, 3%

West, 54%

South, 8%

East, 35%



Retail portfolio1

\ 61

21 investments; US$2.2 billion current market value; 5 million square feet

(1) Reflects the Fund’s investment in an unconsolidated joint venture. 

“Other” category includes Fashion/Specialty, Power Centers and Single-Tenant

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Allocations are subject to change without notice. Source: DWS. As of March 31, 2022.

Retail portfolio by property typeRetail portfolio by region Property rating

Retail strategy 

— Focusing portfolio on dominant properties with grocery anchors, strong sales and defensive characteristics 

— Invest in current portfolio to maintain or improve market position

— Sell and buy selectively to further strengthen portfolio mix

— Expand community/neighborhood center retail exposure with grocer anchor component in proven metros

Midwest, 4%

West, 54%East, 22%

South, 20%

Class A, 93%Class B, 7%

Other, 28%

Neighborhood/

Comm, 43%

Super Reg/

Reg Malls, 29%

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Office portfolio1

\ 62

18 investments; US$4.2 billion current market value; 7 million square feet

(1) Reflects the Fund’s investment in unconsolidated joint ventures.

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Allocations are subject to change without notice. 

Source: DWS. As of March 31, 2022.

Office portfolio by property typeOffice portfolio by region Property rating

Office strategy 

— Raise rents and occupancy in 2022, significant income growth potential

— Pursue tactical opportunities with emphasis on modern product with stable long-term income 

— Focused on A locations in prime target markets

— Focus on "Live/Work/Play" locations with access to transit

Class A, 88%Class B, 12%CBD, 57%Suburban, 43%
East, 47% West, 31%

Midwest, 8%

South, 14%

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Residential portfolio

\ 63

37 investments; US$5.0 billion current market value; 10,962 units

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Allocations are subject to change without notice. 

Source: DWS. As of March 31, 2022.

Residential portfolio by 

property type

Residential portfolio by region Property rating

Residential strategy 

— Well-positioned portfolio of residential properties

— Improving mix with high quality live/work/play properties

— Next Generation Product with a focus on new development

— Acquisitions in 2022 in under-allocated markets with emphasis on garden, mid rise, student housing and single-family rentals

Class A, 71%Class B, 29%West, 41%

South, 33%

Midwest, 6%

East, 20%

Garden, 58%

Lowrise, 6% Highrise, 36%

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Appendix
Biographies



RREEF America REIT II

\ 65

Management Team

John P. Ehli

— Co-Lead Portfolio Manager & Team Lead Real Estate - RREEF America REIT II: New York

— Joined the Company in 2005 with 16 years of industry experience. Prior to joining, John served 

as a Senior Vice President at KBS Realty Advisors. Previously, he worked at First Interstate Bank 

and as a Principal at his own independent appraisal company

— BS in Business from Loyola Marymount University

James W. Miller Jr.

— Co-Lead Portfolio Manager & Team Lead Real Estate - RREEF America REIT II:  

San Francisco, CA

— Joined the Company in 2006 with 10 years of industry experience. Prior to joining, James 

served as an Executive Vice President in the Corporate Solutions Group at Jones Lang LaSalle. 

Previously, he worked as an Attorney at Orrick, Herrington & 

Sutcliffe LLP

— BA in English from University of Virginia; JD from Washington & Lee University

Norton F. O'Meara

— Senior Portfolio Manager Real Estate - RREEF America REIT II:  Chicago, IL

— Joined the Company in 1994 with 9 years of industry experience. Prior to joining, Norton 

served as a Portfolio Manager at VMS Realty. Previously, he was a Development Manager at 

Fordham Company

— BS in Marketing from Boston College; MBA from Loyola University Chicago

Joseph Cappelletti

— CFO, Institutional Funds: Chicago, IL

— Joined the Company in 1985. Prior to his current role, Joseph served as Director of Client 

Reporting and as Treasurer and Controller of Cabot Industrial Trust (an industrial REIT 

acquired by Deutsche Bank). Previously, he worked as Asset Management Controller and as a 

Portfolio Accountant

— BS in Accounting and MBA in Finance from DePaul University; 

Certified Public Accountant

Joshua Lenhert

— Senior Portfolio Manager Real Estate - RREEF America REIT II:  San Francisco, CA

— Joined the Company in 2002. Prior to his current role, Joshua served as a Portfolio Analyst for 

RREEF America REIT II and for one of the Company's largest real estate separate accounts

— BA in Economics and Psychology from University of California, Berkeley

Janice Lee

— Senior Portfolio Manager & Team Lead Real Estate - RREEF America REIT II:  New York

— Joined the Company in 2011. Prior to her current role, Janice worked as a portfolio analyst for 

RREEF America REIT II

— BS in Applied Economics and Management from Cornell University

Megan Hess

— Fund Administration Oversight - Senior Fund Finance Controller (RREEF America REIT II, RREEF 

Property Trust):  Chicago, IL

— Joined the Company in 2010 with 4 years of industry experience. Prior to her current role, 

Megan served as an Assistant Controller. Before joining, she was a Finance Controller at 

Vestian Group, Inc and a Senior Associate at KPMG, LLP

— BA and MA in Accounting from University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign; Certified Public 

Accountant; National Co-Chair of DWS Women's Initiative Network

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Americas real estate investment committee

\ 66

Michael J. Nigro, PE

— Chair, CIO – Real Estate, Americas: Chicago, IL

— Joined the Company in 2004 with 8 years of industry experience. Prior to joining, Michael 

served as a Senior Manager at Mesirow Financial Real Estate, where he was responsible for 

large public-private partnership projects. He began his career as a Project Manager

— BS in Civil Engineering from University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign; MBA in Finance (with 

Distinction) from DePaul University; Professional Engineer License

W. Todd Henderson

— Global Co-Head of Real Estate Investments and Head of Real Estate for the Americas: New 

York

— Joined the Company in 2003 with 12 years of industry experience. Prior to his current role, 

Todd served as the Chief Investment Officer of RREEF Real Estate in the Americas. Before 

joining, he was Director of Acquisitions for The J.E. Robert Company. Previously, he worked in 

restructuring and disposing of nonperforming real estate loans at First Gibraltar Bank

— BA from the University of North Texas; MBA from The Wharton School, University 

of Pennsylvania

Timothy Ellsworth

— Head of Transactions Real Estate: Chicago, IL

— Joined the Company in 1998 with 15 years of industry experience. Prior to his current role, 

Timothy served as the Head of Real Estate Portfolio Management in the Americas. Before 

joining, he was Regional Vice President of Acquisitions at Cornerstone Real Estate Advisors. 

Previously, he worked in Debt and Equity Finance, Asset Management and Investment Sales at 

General Electric Capital

— BS in Finance from Indiana University

Vikram Mehra, CFA

— Head of Real Estate Portfolio Management: New York

— Joined the Company in 2005 with 6 years of industry experience. Prior to his current role, 

Vikram was Head of Strategic Planning & Analysis for Alternative Investments and Business 

Manager for Research & Strategy, Alternatives and Real Assets. Prior to joining, he served as a 

Controller for Finance Operations at JP Morgan Chase and as an Officer for New Product 

Development at IDBI Bank. Previously, he worked as a Manager for Global Futures Trading at 

REFCO India Private Limited

— MBA in Finance from University of Mumbai; MS in Finance from Carroll School of 

Management, Boston College; CFA Charterholder

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Americas real estate investment committee (continued)

\ 67

Kevin White, CFA

— Head of Real Estate Research, Americas: New York

— Joined the Company in 2015 with 19 years of work experience, thereof 11 years in the finance 

industry. Prior to joining, Kevin served in investment strategy and research at Cole Capital and 

at Property & Portfolio Research (PPR). Previously, he was an economist at International Data 

Corporation and a tax policy officer in the Department of Finance at the Government of 

Canada

— BA in Economics from Queen's University; MA in Economics from University of British 

Columbia; CFA Charterholder

Andy Harper

— Lead Transactions Officer, West Coast: San Francisco, CA

— Joined the Company in 2000 with 3 years of industry experience. Prior to joining, Andy worked 

in the Real Estate Valuation and Consulting Group at Arthur Andersen

— BA in Finance and Real Estate from Indiana University Bloomington; Member of local and 

national chapters of NAIOP and the Urban Land Institute

John P. Ehli

— Lead Portfolio Manager & Team Lead Real Estate - RREEF America REIT II: New York

— Joined the Company in 2005 with 16 years of industry experience. Prior to joining, John served 

as a Senior Vice President at KBS Realty Advisors. Previously, he worked at First Interstate Bank 

and as a Principal at his own independent appraisal company

— BS in Business from Loyola Marymount University

James W. Miller Jr.

— Lead Portfolio Manager & Team Lead Real Estate - RREEF America REIT II: 

San Francisco, CA

— Joined the Company in 2006 with 10 years of industry experience. Prior to joining, James 

served as an Executive Vice President in the Corporate Solutions Group at Jones Lang LaSalle. 

Previously, he worked as an Attorney at Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP

— BA in English from University of Virginia; JD from Washington & Lee University

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



RREEF America REIT II

\ 68

Board of directors

Gregg A. Gonsalves – Mr. Gonsalves joined the Board in 2020. Mr. Gonsalves is an Advisory 

Partner with Integrated Capital LLC. Integrated Capital is a leading, hotel-focused, private real 

estate advisory firm. Prior to joining Integrated Capital, Mr. Gonsalves was a Managing Director 

in Goldman, Sachs & Co.’s Real Estate Group and Mergers Leadership Group and was the Partner 

responsible for Goldman’s Real Estate Merger & Acquisition Business. Mr. Gonsalves joined 

Goldman Sachs’ Merger & Acquisitions Department as an Associate in 1993, after having spent a 

summer in the M&A Department in 1992. He was promoted to Vice President in the Investment 

Banking Division in 1997, ran Goldman’s Aerospace and Defense Sector from 1999 – 2007, and 

began running the Real Estate M&A Group in 2008. Mr. Gonsalves was promoted to Managing 

Director in 2001 and became a Partner in 2004. In his 20 year career at Goldman Sachs, Mr. 

Gonsalves completed over 50 M&A transactions worth approximately $100 billion in deal value, 

working with a variety of companies in a wide range of industries while a part of the Mergers, 

Real Estate, and Industrials Groups. Mr. Gonsalves was also appointed to several leadership 

positions at the firm during his time at Goldman, including serving as a member of the Firmwide 

Commitments Committee (the entity responsible for approving any equity underwriting by 

Goldman), heading the firm’s recruiting efforts at Harvard Business School, running the 

Investment Banking Division’s Associate Training Program, and leading the Firmwide Black 

(Professionals’) Network. Mr. Gonsalves serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the 

Jackie Robinson Foundation, having been a Jackie Robinson Scholarship recipient himself while 

pursuing his undergraduate degree. Mr. Gonsalves also serves as Chairman of the Board of 

Directors of Cedar Realty Trust, a publicly traded REIT that owns retail (principally grocery 

anchored) real estate, on the Board of Directors of Cowen Inc., a publicly traded, diversified 

financial services firm, as well as on the Board of POP Tracker LLC, a private start-up company 

focused on providing third party proof of performance to the out of home advertising industry. 

Mr. Gonsalves completed his undergraduate studies in Mechanical Engineering and received his 

B.Sc. from Columbia University in 1989. He later attended the Harvard Graduate School of 

Business (receiving his M.B.A. from Harvard in 1993).

W. Todd Henderson Global Co-Head of Real Estate Investments and Head of Real Estate for the 

Americas.

Mr. Henderson joined the Board in 2012. Mr. Henderson is the Global Co-Head of Real Estate 

Investments and the Head of Real Estate Americas for DWS.   Mr. Henderson is a member of the 

DWS Global Leadership Team, DWS Global Investment Division Leadership Committee, and the 

DWS Americas Leadership Council. He also serves on the Global Real Estate Investment 

Committee, and the Americas and Asia Regional Real Estate Investment Committees. Mr. 

Henderson joined the Company in 2003 with 12 years of experience in the real estate industry.  

In his current role, he is responsible for all facets of the direct real estate investment 

management business.  Currently, he is the Chairman of the Board of both RREEF Core Plus 

Industrial Fund and RREEF Property Trust and serves as a member of the RREEF America REIT II 

Board of Directors. Prior to his current role, Mr. Henderson was the Chief Investment Officer for 

the Americas real estate business and, in this role, was responsible for directing the investment 

strategy in the Americas.  In his capacity as CIO, he served as Chairman of the Americas Real 

Estate Investment Committee, and served on the Americas Real Estate Management Committee. 

From June 2007 to March 2009, Mr. Henderson was responsible for the Company’s Value-Added 

and Development group where he directed a 16-person team managing a $4.5 billion portfolio 

for multiple clients.  While in this role, he restructured the portfolio and the group in response to 

the global financial crisis.  Prior to joining DWS, Mr. Henderson was a Director of Acquisitions for 

The J.E. Robert Company in Washington, D.C., where he was involved in the sourcing, executing 

and financing of over $6 billion of real estate transactions.  Previously, he worked on 

restructuring and disposing of nonperforming real estate loans at First Gibraltar Bank on behalf 

of the bank and the Resolution Trust Company (“RTC”).  He holds a B.A. from the University of 

North Texas and an M.B.A. from The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



RREEF America REIT II

\ 69

Board of directors (continued)

Deborah H. McAneny – Ms. McAneny joined the Board in 2011. Ms. McAneny was the Chief 

Operating Officer of Benchmark Senior Living, LLC from April 2007 to May 2009. Prior to that, she 

was employed at John Hancock Financial Services for 20 years, including as Executive Vice 

President for Structured and Alternative Investments and as a Member of its Policy Committee 

from 2002 to 2004, Senior Vice President for John Hancock's Real Estate Investment Group and 

President of John Hancock Real Estate Finance from 2000 to 2002, and as a Vice President of the 

Real Estate Investment Group from 1997 to 2000. Prior to her years at John Hancock, Ms. 

McAneny was a senior auditor at Arthur Andersen & Co. She is currently a Director of JLL, Inc., 

First Eagle Alternative Capital BDC, Inc., RREEF Property Trust and KKR Real Estate Finance Trust, 

Inc. She is a member of the board of the University of Vermont Foundation and an emeritus 

trustee of the University of Vermont. Ms. McAneny holds a Masters Professional Director 

Certification from the American College of Corporate Directors, a national public company 

director education and credentialing organization.

Murray J. McCabe – Mr. McCabe joined the Board in 2016. Mr. McCabe is the Founder and 

Managing Partner at Montgomery Street Partners, L.P., a private equity firm. Prior to founding 

Montgomery Street Partners, Mr. McCabe worked at JPMorgan Chase & Co. from 1992 through 

August 2012.  During his 20-year tenure at JPMorgan, Mr. McCabe held several positions in the 

Investment Banking Division, including Managing Director and Global Head of Real Estate and 

Lodging Investment Banking.  In addition, Mr. McCabe served as a member of JPMorgan’s 

Mergers and Acquisitions Fairness Opinion Committee from 2001 to 2002, the Investment 

Banking Coverage Management Committee from 2010 through his departure in August 2012, and 

on the board of JPMorgan Real Estate Advisors during the same period.  Mr. McCabe was a 

director of Columbia Property Trust (NYSE: CXP) until its sale in 2021, remains a director of 

Sunstone Hotel Investors, Inc. (NYSE: SHO), and RREEF America REIT II Inc., a diversified real 

estate investment company with over $12 Billion in assets. He is an executive council member of 

the Real Estate Finance and Investment Center and serves on the REIT Investment Funds advisory 

board for the McCombs School of Business at the University of Texas, Austin. Mr. McCabe 

received his B.A. in Finance from the University of Texas, Austin.

Steven G. Rogers – Mr. Rogers joined the Board in 2014. Mr. Rogers is the Founding and 

Managing Member of Rogers & Associates, LLC (“RA”). Formed in 2011, the firm focuses on 

providing specialized solutions for principals and institutional owners in the real estate industry, 

board level advisory work, and direct equity investments in real estate. Prior to RA, Mr. Rogers 

led Parkway Properties REIT (“Parkway”) as President and Chief Executive Officer from its early 

development through its move to the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) in 1996. Mr. Rogers 

joined Parkway as an Asset Manager in 1983. He was promoted to Vice President in 1988; Senior 

Vice President in 1991; President in 1993 and Chief Executive Officer in 1997. Additionally, Mr. 

Rogers was a Member of Parkway’s Board of Directors from 1996 to 2011. In 1976, Mr. Rogers 

graduated magna cum laude from the University of Mississippi and went on to complete five 

years in the U.S. Army, achieving the rank of Captain. Upon completing his military service, Mr. 

Rogers attended Harvard Graduate School of Business Administration earning his M.B.A. with 

first year honors in 1983. His numerous community, political, and business activities include 

serving as a Director of Cedar Realty Trust, a NYSE listed REIT, a director of First Commercial 

Bank, a de novo bank he helped found in 2000, Chairman of the Board of Net Lease Alliance, a 

real estate development services firm in Nashville, TN., and a Trustee for the Walker Family Trust, 

a private land and investment company. He also serves as an independent director of TRISTAR 

Acquisition Corp. a NYSE listed technology company and a Member of the Urban Land Institute 

and on the Board of the Boy Scouts of America, Andrew Jackson Council (“AJC”). Mr. Rogers past 

positions include President for the AJC of Boy Scouts of America, State Chairman for Young 

Presidents Organization (“YPO”), Vice Chairman and Trustee for the MS Museum of Art, 

Chairman of the Board of RREEF America REIT III, Inc., two terms on the Board of Trustees of 

NAREIT, including Chairman of the Audit Committee, and the National Advisory Board for the B.B. 

King Museum.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



RREEF America REIT II

\ 70

Board of directors (continued)

Brian M. Smith – Mr. Smith joined the Board in 2018. Mr. Smith is Chief Executive Officer of BMS 

Real Estate Holdings, LLC in Jacksonville, FL and is a senior advisor at McKinsey & Co.  Prior to his 

current role, Mr. Smith was with Regency Centers Corp. in Jacksonville, FL, a publicly traded real 

estate investment trust specializing in developing, owning, and operating grocery-anchored and 

community shopping centers. During his 19-year tenure at Regency Centers Corp., Mr. Smith held 

various roles and most recently served as President, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Investment 

Officer, and Director. He was also a member of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee and 

Investment Committee and served as Chairman of both the Operating and Capital Allocation 

Committees. Mr. Smith was one of the founding members of Pacific Retail Trust (PRT), a private 

REIT subsequently purchased by Regency Centers, and started the development program on the 

west coast. Prior to joining Regency Centers Corp., Mr. Smith held roles with Lowe Enterprises as 

Senior Vice President and with Trammell Crow Company as a Partner and member of the 

National Retail Executive Committee. Mr. Smith was a Naval Officer (Special Duty: Cryptology) for 

the United States Navy from 1976 until 1981. He attended Stanford Graduate School of Business, 

earning his M.B.A. in 1983, and also holds an M.A. from Pepperdine University and a B.S. from 

the United States Naval Academy. Mr. Smith is a past trustee of the International Council of 

Shopping Centers (ICSC) and holds the following certifications from ICSC: Certified Retail Property 

Executive; Certified Design, Development and Construction Professional; and Certified Leasing 

Specialist. Mr. Smith is a former Executive Board Member for the Florida State University Center 

for Real Estate Education and Research.

Lenore M. Sullivan – Ms. Sullivan joined the Board in 2015. Ms. Sullivan was a Partner with 

Perella Weinberg Partners and the portfolio manager for the firm’s Agility Real Assets Fund from 

May 2007 to October 2009. Prior to that she was employed by the McCombs School of Business 

at the University of Texas at Austin as the Associate Director of the Real Estate Finance and 

Investment Center from 2002 to 2008, where she was also a lecturer in real estate finance and 

investment strategy in the school’s undergraduate and graduate business programs. She was an 

officer of Hunt Oil Co. from 2000 to 2002, where she served as a partner with the Lafayette Fund. 

She served as Chief Financial Officer for Canizaro Interests from 1995 to 1996, and co-founded 

Stonegate Asset Management, an independent business advisory and investment banking firm, 

from 1992 to 2000. Ms. Sullivan joined the Trammell Crow Company in 1983 and became a 

partner in the firm in 1987. She joined Trammell Crow Interests, now Crow Holdings, in 1989 and 

served as Corporate Vice President Finance and Treasurer of Wyndham Hotel Company from 

1990 to 1992. Ms. Sullivan was an analyst with Morgan Stanley from 1979 to 1981. She is 

currently a director of PotlatchDeltic Corporation (NASDAQ: PCH), where she serves on the 

nominating and governance and audit committees. She joined the board of RREEF’s Core Plus 

Industrial Fund in 2017; she serves on the audit committee and chairs the Nominating and 

Governance Committee. She served as a member and former Chair of the Investment Advisory 

Committee to the Board of Trustees of the Employee Retirement System of Texas from 2010 

through March 2019. She serves on the Leadership Committee of the Real Estate Finance and 

Investment Center at the McCombs School of Business. She was previously a Director of Parkway 

Properties, Inc., and Deltic Timber Corporation prior to its merger with PotlatchDeltic. Ms. 

Sullivan graduated cum laude from Smith College in 1979 with a degree in economics and 

government. She received her M.B.A. with first year honors from Harvard Business School in 

1983. Ms. Sullivan holds an Executive Masters Professional Director Certification from the 

American College of Corporate Directors, a national public company director education and 

credentialing organization.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Appendix
Disclosures



GIPS® composite report

Americas real estate – U.S. direct core composite

First Quarter 2021



Americas real estate – U.S. direct core composite

\ 73

First Quarter 2021

1 Net of fees returns are net of investment management and performance-based fees. Actual investment management fees are used.
2 NCREIF benchmark not examined as part of verification.

Data shown January 1, 2011 through March 31, 2021

Schedule of rates of return and statistics

Year 

End

Income 

Return 

Gross of 

Fees

Capital 

Return

Total 

Return 

Gross of 

Fees

Income 

Returns 

Net of 

Fees1

Total 

Returns 

Net of 

Fees1

Total 

Return 

NCREIF 

Property 

Index2

Range of 

Returns 

(Low, High)

Total 

Composite 

Net Assets 

End of 

Period (USD 

billion)

Percent 

Leveraged 

End of 

Period 

(as a % of 

composite 

assets)

Percent of 

External 

Valuations 

End of Period 

(as a % of 

composite 

assets)

Number of 

Portfolios 

End of 

Period

Total Firm 

Assets End 

of Period 

(USD 

billion)

Total Firm 

Net Assets 

End of 

Period (USD 

billion)

2011 6.20 7.92 14.48 5.74 13.99 14.26 -2.40, 30.73 $8.5 31.9 64.8 32 $18.2 $11.3

2012 6.25 5.05 11.54 4.52 9.74 10.54 -9.11, 62.10 $7.8 32.9 66.0 36 $16.6 $10.4

2013 6.18 7.98 14.53 5.48 13.78 10.98 -6.28, 43.28 $8.5 30.2 63.9 36 $16.3 $10.8

2014 5.58 7.99 13.89 4.41 12.65 11.82 -3.69, 33.74 $9.9 27.7 64.8 37 $17.9 $12.3

2015 5.21 11.37 17.01 4.10 15.81 13.33 -3.38, 51.09 $11.8 24.6 64.5 36 $20.2 $14.3

2016 4.80 4.75 9.72 3.89 8.78 7.97 -1.93, 38.44 $12.2 24.1 79.8 34 $21.1 $14.9

2017 4.59 3.31 8.01 3.68 7.09 6.96 -1.32, 30.40 $12.4 21.1 80.1 24 $22.1 $15.4

2018 4.43 4.71 9.30 3.52 8.36 6.72 -2.88, 41.89 $13.8 20.3 80.2 23 $24.3 $17.1

2019 4.45 3.38 7.94 3.55 7.01 6.42 -3.40, 21.01 $15.4 19.5 80.0 22 $27.4 $19.6

2020 4.08 -1.81 2.21 3.20 1.34 1.60 -101.51, 13.49 $15.3 22.4 84.5 21 $28.2 $19.7

1Q21 1.03 1.62 2.66 0.83 2.45 1.72 -262.69, 23.88 $15.5 22.3 83.7 21 $28.2 $19.8

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Americas real estate – U.S. direct core composite

\ 74

First Quarter 2021

Organization and presentation standards

DWS - Americas Real Estate (the "Firm") is part of the Alternatives platform of DWS, a division of DWS Group GmbH & Co KGaA. The Firm specializes in creating and managing real estate investment 
portfolios across the risk spectrum, including private real estate equity, private real estate debt, as well as other blended or specialized strategies for institutional, high net worth and retail investors in 
the U.S. and abroad.

Portfolios eligible for the composites and types of portfolios

All discretionary, fee-paying portfolios are included in at least one composite. Portfolios are considered discretionary if the Firm has sole or primary responsibility for major investment decisions, 
including acquisitions, dispositions and financing. The existence of client-imposed investment restrictions may not preclude classification of a portfolio as discretionary where such restrictions do not 
inhibit the Firm from implementing its intended strategy. There is no minimum portfolio asset size requirement for inclusion in a composite and no assets are included in any composite that is not a 
part of the Firm.

A portfolio is included in a composite in the first full quarter after the first investment is purchased. From 01/01/2002 to 09/30/2010, a portfolio with an investment purchased on the first day of the 
quarter is included in a composite for that quarter. Effective 10/01/2010, a portfolio with an investment purchased on the first day of the quarter is excluded from a composite for that quarter. A 
portfolio with its last investment sold on the last day of a quarter is excluded from a composite for that quarter. Effective 01/01/2012, a portfolio with an investment purchased on the first day of the 
quarter is included in the composite for that quarter. A portfolio with its last investment sold on the last day of a quarter is included in the composite for that quarter. 

Americas Real Estate – U.S. Direct Core Composite

The Americas Real Estate - U.S. Direct Core Composite includes portfolios that consist of all or a high concentration of core investments. Core investments are defined as existing, high-quality, well-
leased and income-producing properties in established real estate locations within major metropolitan areas. Core portfolios will have low to moderate leverage and achieve a large portion of their 
return from income. The composite inception date is 01/01/2002 and was created in January 2007. From 01/01/2002 to 09/30/2010, the RREEF Real Estate – U.S. Direct Core Composite was known as 
the “Core Composite.” This name change is effective 10/01/2010. From 10/01/2010 to 12/31/2012, the Americas Real Estate – U.S. Direct Core Composite was known as the “RREEF Real Estate – U.S. 
Direct Core Composite.” This name change is effective 01/01/2013.

Performance results

Composite returns are calculated on an asset-weighted basis using beginning of period values adjusted for time-weighted external cash flows. Cash flows are time-weighted so portfolio returns reflect 
the time assets are actually held in the portfolio. Contributions and distributions are weighted based on the date of cash flow. Returns include cash and cash equivalents, related interest income and 
when applicable, the reinvestment of income. Income returns are based on accrual recognition of earned income. Capital expenditures are capitalized and included in the cost of the property and are 
reconciled through the valuation process and reflected in the capital return component. Returns are calculated on a quarterly basis. Annual returns are time-weighted returns calculated by 
geometrically linking quarterly returns. Income and capital returns may not equal total returns due to compounding effects of linking quarterly returns. Gross returns are presented before asset 
management and performance fees. Net returns are presented after asset management and performance fees. Gross and Net returns are calculated net of operating and fund expenses incurred on 
behalf of the underlying portfolios. Returns are calculated net of certain administrative expenses incurred on behalf of the underlying portfolios. Returns are presented and denominated in U.S. 
Dollars. Returns are presented net of leverage. Policies for valuing investments, calculating performance, and preparing GIPS Reports are available upon request. A list of composite and pooled fund 
descriptions are also available upon request.

Portfolios may be leveraged utilizing fixed and floating rate debt. The impact of marking debt to market, where called for by the client agreement, is included in the performance of the composite. 
Material use of leverage is defined as the use of debt of any amount on any asset. Material use of derivatives is defined as the use of interest rate swaps and caps, the amount of which totals more 
than 5% of portfolio assets. Total Firm assets represent the aggregate fair market value of properties under management. Total Firm net assets represent the net asset value of all portfolios under 
management.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Americas real estate – U.S. direct core composite

\ 75

First Quarter 2021

Performance results (Continued)

Assets are valued quarterly by the Firm. For both internal and external property valuations, the Firm relies on the application of market discount rates to project future cash flows and capitalized 
terminal values over the expected holding period. Prior to January 1, 2006, real estate assets were externally appraised by either a tax appraiser or an independent Member of the Appraisal Institute 
(MAI) at least once every 36 months, unless otherwise not required by a portfolio’s Investment Management Agreement and certain properties under development. Effective January 1, 2006, all 
properties were externally appraised by either a tax appraiser or an independent Member of the Appraisal Institute (MAI) at least once every 36 months. Effective January 1, 2011, assets are externally 
appraised by either a tax appraiser or an independent Member of the Appraisal Institute (MAI) at least once every 12 months unless client agreements stipulate otherwise, in which case real estate 
investments are externally appraised at least once every 36 months or per the client agreement if the client agreement requires external valuations more frequently than every 36 months. 

Composite dispersion measures represent the consistency of composite performance with respect to the individual portfolio returns within the composite. Composite dispersion is measured by the 
high and low returns for the periods presented.

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Other methods may produce different results and the results for individual portfolios and for different periods may vary depending on market 
conditions and the composition of the portfolio. Care should be used when comparing these results to those published by other investment advisers, other investment vehicles and unmanaged indices 
due to possible differences in calculation methods.

Fees

Asset management fees are paid to the Firm primarily based on a percentage of a portfolio’s net operating income or fair market value. Some portfolios pay fees ranging from 5% to 9% of net 
operating income while others pay fees ranging from 0.30% to 0.75% of the portfolio’s fair market value.

Some of the portfolios pay incentive fees based on either property dispositions or portfolio performance. Disposition-based incentive fees primarily range between 10% and 20% of net capital 
transaction proceeds or gross disposition proceeds in excess of established hurdles. Incentive fees based on portfolio performance primarily range between 10% and 20% of aggregate fair market value 
in excess of established hurdles.

NCREIF Property Index Benchmark

The National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries (NCREIF) Property Index (NPI) is an unleveraged property return index comprised of property level financial data which excludes cash and 
other assets and liabilities. Comparison of composite results with the benchmark index may be affected by, among other factors, leverage employed by the portfolios, portfolio level income, expenses 
and differences between the property type and geographic composition of the portfolios and the benchmark index.

Compliance statement

DWS - Americas Real Estate (the "Firm") claims compliance with the Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®) and has prepared and presented this report in compliance with the GIPS 
standards. The Firm has been independently verified for the periods January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2019. A firm that claims compliance with the GIPS standards must establish policies and 
procedures for complying with all the applicable requirements of the GIPS standards. Verification provides assurance on whether the firm's policies and procedures related to composite and pooled 
fund maintenance, as well as the calculation, presentation, and distribution of performance, have been designed in compliance with the GIPS standards and have been implemented on a firm-wide 
basis. The Americas Real Estate - U.S. Direct Core Composite has had a performance examination for the periods January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2019. The verification and performance 
examination reports are available upon request. GIPS® is a registered trademark of CFA Institute. CFA Institute does not endorse or promote this organization, nor does it warrant the accuracy or 
quality of the content contained herein.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



GIPS® composite report

Americas real estate – RREEF America REIT II composite

First Quarter 2021



Americas real estate – RREEF America REIT II composite

\ 77

First Quarter 2021

1 Net of fees returns are net of investment management and performance-based fees. Actual investment management fees are used.
2 NCREIF benchmark not examined as part of verification.

Data shown January 1, 2011 through March 31, 2021

Schedule of rates of return and statistics

Year 

End

Income 

Return 

Gross of 

Fees

Capital 

Return

Total 

Return 

Gross of 

Fees

Income 

Returns 

Net of 

Fees1

Total 

Returns 

Net of 

Fees1

Total 

Return 

NFI-ODCE 

Gross of 

Fees2

Total Return 

NFI-ODCE 

Net of Fees2

Total 

Composite 

Net Assets 

End of Period 

(USD billion)

Percent 

Leveraged 

End of Period 

(as a % of 

composite 

assets)

Percent of 

External 

Valuations 

End of Period 

(as a % of 

composite 

assets)

Number of 

Portfolios 

End of 

Period

Total 

Firm 

Assets 

End of 

Period 

(USD 

billion)

Total 

Firm Net 

Assets 

End of 

Period 

(USD 

billion)

2011 5.82 8.02 14.19 5.58 13.94 15.99 14.96 $5.5 31.4 100 1 $18.2 $11.3

2012 6.13 6.00 12.40 3.94 10.12 10.94 9.79 $5.1 30.7 100 1 $16.6 $10.4

2013 5.84 8.83 15.05 5.37 14.54 13.94 12.89 $5.8 25.3 100 1 $16.3 $10.8

2014 5.15 7.59 13.03 4.16 11.98 12.50 11.46 $6.9 23.3 96.6 1 $17.9 $12.3

2015 4.79 11.55 16.74 3.79 15.66 15.02 13.95 $8.6 19.3 95.0 1 $20.2 $14.3

2016 4.47 4.53 9.14 3.48 8.13 8.77 7.79 $9.5 21.6 100 1 $21.1 $14.9

2017 4.28 3.06 7.44 3.30 6.43 7.62 6.66 $9.9 18.4 99.8 1 $22.1 $15.4

2018 4.24 4.05 8.42 3.26 7.41 8.35 7.36 $11.0 18.0 94.3 1 $24.3 $17.1

2019 4.28 2.90 7.27 3.29 6.26 5.34 4.39 $12.3 16.5 96.6 1 $27.4 $19.6

2020 4.08 -1.93 2.09 3.10 1.12 1.19 0.34 $12.1 20.4 99.4 1 $28.2 $19.7

1Q21 1.06 1.12 2.18 0.82 1.94 2.11 1.89 $12.2 20.7 98.3 1 $28.2 $19.8

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Americas real estate – RREEF America REIT II composite

\ 78

First Quarter 2021

Organization and presentation standards

DWS - Americas Real Estate (the "Firm") is part of the Alternatives platform of DWS, a division of DWS Group GmbH & Co KGaA. The Firm specializes in creating and managing real estate investment 
portfolios across the risk spectrum, including private real estate equity, private real estate debt, as well as other blended or specialized strategies for institutional, high net worth and retail investors in 
the U.S. and abroad.

Portfolios eligible for the composites and types of portfolios

All discretionary, fee-paying portfolios are included in at least one composite. Portfolios are considered discretionary if the Firm has sole or primary responsibility for major investment decisions, 
including acquisitions, dispositions and financing. The existence of client-imposed investment restrictions may not preclude classification of a portfolio as discretionary where such restrictions do not 
inhibit the Firm from implementing its intended strategy. There is no minimum portfolio asset size requirement for inclusion in a composite and no assets are included in any composite that is not a 
part of the Firm.

A portfolio is included in a composite in the first full quarter after the first investment is purchased. From 01/01/2002 to 09/30/2010, a portfolio with an investment purchased on the first day of the 
quarter is included in a composite for that quarter. Effective 10/01/2010, a portfolio with an investment purchased on the first day of the quarter is excluded from a composite for that quarter. A 
portfolio with its last investment sold on the last day of a quarter is excluded from a composite for that quarter. Effective 01/01/2012, a portfolio with an investment purchased on the first day of the 
quarter is included in the composite for that quarter. A portfolio with its last investment sold on the last day of a quarter is included in the composite for that quarter. 

Americas Real Estate – RREEF America REIT II Composite

The Americas Real Estate – RREEF America REIT II Composite is a core, open-end commingled composite structured as a private real estate investment trust (REIT) that seeks to provide institutional 
investors with attractive risk-adjusted returns from both low-risk/core investments and selected moderate-risk/enhanced return investments in real estate. The composite’s investment strategy 
includes the acquisition, active management and sale of well-located apartment, industrial, retail and office properties in major metropolitan markets across the continental United States. The strategy 
also pursues a defensive property-weighting approach through the over-weighting of property types with lower volatility. The composite inception date is 01/01/2002 and was created in March 2009. 
From 01/01/2002 to 09/30/2010, the RREEF Real Estate – RREEF America REIT II Composite was known as the “RREEF America REIT II Composite.” This name change is effective 10/01/2010. From 
10/01/2010 to 12/31/2012, the Americas Real Estate – RREEF America REIT II Composite was known as the “RREEF Real Estate – RREEF America REIT II Composite.” This name change is effective 
01/01/2013.

Performance results

Composite returns are calculated on an asset-weighted basis using beginning of period values adjusted for time-weighted external cash flows. Cash flows are time-weighted so portfolio returns reflect 
the time assets are actually held in the portfolio. Contributions and distributions are weighted based on the date of cash flow. Returns include cash and cash equivalents, related interest income and 
when applicable, the reinvestment of income. Income returns are based on accrual recognition of earned income. Capital expenditures are capitalized and included in the cost of the property and are 
reconciled through the valuation process and reflected in the capital return component. Returns are calculated on a quarterly basis. Annual returns are time-weighted returns calculated by 
geometrically linking quarterly returns. Income and capital returns may not equal total returns due to compounding effects of linking quarterly returns. Gross returns are presented before asset 
management and performance fees. Net returns are presented after asset management and performance fees. Gross and Net returns are calculated net of operating and fund expenses incurred on 
behalf of the underlying portfolios. Returns are calculated net of certain administrative expenses incurred on behalf of the underlying portfolios. Returns are presented and denominated in U.S. 
Dollars. Returns are presented net of leverage. Total Firm assets represent the aggregate fair market value of properties under management. Total Firm net assets represent the net asset value of all 
portfolios under management. Policies for valuing investments, calculating performance, and preparing GIPS Reports are available upon request. A list of composite and pooled fund descriptions are 
also available upon request.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Americas real estate – RREEF America REIT II composite

\ 79

First Quarter 2021

Performance results (Continued)

Property valuation

The REIT’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for the selection of appraisal firms and determination of the fair market value of properties held in the portfolio. When selecting an appraisal 
firm, the Investment Manager solicits bids from three or more independent nationally known valuation firms, which are presented to the Board for review and final selection. Approved firms conduct 
appraisals on behalf of the REIT during the period for which the approval is effective. 

With the exception of mid-quarter acquisitions and properties that are under contract for sale with non-refundable deposits that have been funded, external valuations are conducted quarterly for 
every property as directed by the Board. Each quarter, an independent appraisal firm performs a full, self-contained appraisal on properties representing approximately 25 percent of the value of the 
REIT’s properties. The properties representing the remaining 75 percent of the REIT’s value are externally valued by Altus Group U.S. Inc., the REIT’s independent external valuation advisor. 
Additionally, for each asset that is externally appraised with a full independent appraisal report, RREEF America prepares an internal valuation and compares the external appraised value with its own 
internal valuation. RREEF America L.L.C (“RREEF America”) presents the results of both the internal valuation and the independent appraisal to the Board as well as the external valuations prepared by 
Altus Group U.S. Inc. and the Board makes the determination of the property’s fair market value. Generally, the Board accepts the independent appraiser’s value conclusion for each property.

The Board maintains responsibility for the valuation policy and may change the frequency of external valuations based upon prevailing market conditions and other relevant factors. As mentioned 
above, with the exception of properties acquired during the quarter, the REIT is currently externally valuing 100 percent and internally valuing 25 percent of its properties each quarter and expects to 
continue do so for the foreseeable future.

The Board will review the valuation policy with our management each quarter as the Board controls the valuation process and policies and can modify the valuation requirements at 
its discretion.

Debt valuation

Portfolios may be leveraged utilizing fixed and floating rate debt. The impact of marking debt to market is included in the performance of the composite. Material use of leverage is defined as the use 
of debt of any amount on any asset. Material use of derivatives is defined as the use of interest rate swaps and caps, the amount of which totals more than 5% of portfolio assets. 

As of the quarter ended, March 31, 2020, RREEF America has engaged Chatham Financial (“Chatham”), a nationally recognized debt management firm, to perform quarterly debt valuations for all of 
the REIT’s property and fund level debt. Additionally, RREEF America will continue to perform internal valuations of the REIT’s debt for review and comparative purposes. RREEF America presents the 
results of both the external Chatham valuations as well as the internal valuations to the Board who then makes the determination of the fair market value of the debt. Generally, the Board accepts the 
fair market value provided by Chatham.

Prior to January 1, 2020, RREEF America’s portfolio management team will calculate the fair value of all property and fund level debt maturing greater than one year (debt maturing in less than one 
year is carried at par) quarterly and present the results to RREEF America’s Real Estate Investment Committee for review and approval. Results are subsequently presented to the Board at the quarterly 
Audit Committee meeting for review and approval. The Board retains sole responsibility for any adjustments.

For any property that is acquired with debt already in place, RREEF America will complete a loan valuation at the time of acquisition.

RREEF America’s portfolio management team performs a discounted cash flow analysis to calculate the difference between the contractual loan payments discounted (i) at the contractual interest rate 
and (ii) at a market interest rate. While this alone will not determine the loan’s current market value, it provides a consistent framework in evaluating how a buyer would generally begin to analyze the 
obligation if the loan were to be assumed as part of the property’s sale.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Americas real estate – RREEF America REIT II composite

\ 80

First Quarter 2021

Performance results (Continued)

Debt valuation (Continued)

To determine the current market interest rate, RREEF America’s capital markets team provides a range of risk premiums above the “risk free interest rate” (Treasury bond rate or LIBOR) based on 
prevailing loan spreads and the specific characteristics of the property securing the loan. Among the factors considered are the loan-to-value, debt service coverage ratio, restrictive loan covenants, 
property type, property location, physical condition, and tenancy.

Composite dispersion measures represent the consistency of composite performance with respect to the individual portfolio returns within the composite. Composite dispersion is measured by the 
high and low returns for the periods presented. The RREEF America REIT II Composite currently does not display a dispersion as there is only one fund in the composite. If and when there is a second 
fund dispersion will be displayed.

Past performance is not indicative of future results. Other methods may produce different results and the results for individual portfolios and for different periods may vary depending on market 
conditions and the composition of the portfolio. Care should be used when comparing these results to those published by other investment advisers, other investment vehicles and unmanaged indices 
due to possible differences in calculation methods.

Fees

For all periods prior to October 1, 2013, the following fee schedule applies:

The REIT earns an annual asset management fee as follows:

Amount of Net Operating Income (NOI) Base Fee (as a % of NOI)

For the first $40 million 8%

For the next $40 million 7%

All amounts exceeding $80 million 6%

Net operating income, as defined, is calculated as net income before depreciation, amortization, investment management fees and after deducting one-half (1/2) of the debt service (principal and 
interest) excluding certain principal pay downs. 

The REIT earns a performance fee, which is determined at the end of a three-year compensation period. The fee, which is payable in cash and subject to a 50% holdback, is based on 15% of the excess 
by which the estimated ending fair market value equity of the portfolio plus net sales proceeds held by the REIT pending distribution of reinvestment, exceeds the ending value that would result in a 
6% real internal rate of return, adjusted upward 2.5 basis points for every 1% of leverage. 

The REIT earns an acquisition fee, calculated using 0.75% of the total acquisition price.

The REIT also earns a financing fee, which can be up to 0.50% of the total loan value on any new financing.

As of October 1, 2013, the Board of the REIT as well as the REIT shareholders approved eliminating the base, performance, acquisition and financing fees as defined previously and replaced those fees 
with an annual asset management fee equal to ninety-five one-hundredths of one percent (0.95%) of the aggregate net asset value of the REIT which will be accrued and paid in monthly installments in 
arrears.

NCREIF Fund Index – ODCE Benchmark

The National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries (NCREIF) Fund Index – Open-End Diversified Core Equity (NFI-ODCE) is a fund-level capitalization-weighted, time-weighted return index and 
includes property investments at ownership share, cash balances and leverage.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Americas real estate – RREEF America REIT II composite

\ 81

First Quarter 2021

Compliance statement

DWS - Americas Real Estate (the "Firm") claims compliance with the Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®) and has prepared and presented this report in compliance with the GIPS 
standards. The Firm has been independently verified for the periods January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2019. A firm that claims compliance with the GIPS standards must establish policies and 
procedures for complying with all the applicable requirements of the GIPS standards. Verification provides assurance on whether the firm's policies and procedures related to composite and pooled 
fund maintenance, as well as the calculation, presentation, and distribution of performance, have been designed in compliance with the GIPS standards and have been implemented on a firm-wide 
basis. The RREEF America REIT II Composite has had a performance examination for the periods January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2019. The verification and performance examination reports are 
available upon request. GIPS® is a registered trademark of CFA Institute. CFA Institute does not endorse or promote this organization, nor does it warrant the accuracy or quality of the content 
contained herein.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Performance notes

\ 82

Gross asset value represents the total assets of the Fund, which includes real estate, cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses and any other assets. The estimated net asset 
value (“NAV”) and total fund returns are calculated based primarily on values from independent appraisals of real estate assets and independent valuations of the Fund’s debt obligations and does not 
purport to present the net realizable, liquidation or fair value of the Fund as a whole or the actual rate of return on an investment. With the exception of one mid-quarter acquisition, the Fund 
externally appraised 100 percent of its assets in first quarter 2022. Appraisals are based on numerous assumptions which may not be realized; the appraised value of an asset may not reflect the 
amount that will be realized upon disposition. Accordingly, the amounts ultimately realized may vary significantly from the fair values utilized in the calculation of the net asset value. The Fund has, in 
the past, suffered losses on assets which had significant appraised values. There is uncertainty in the value of real estate investments due to the limited transaction volume in the marketplace.  Please 
refer to “Important Information” for further information.

Performance returns are calculated on an asset-weighted basis using beginning of period values, Performance returns are calculated on an asset-weighted basis using beginning of period values, 
adjusted for contributions, including reinvested dividends, and distributions. Contributions and distributions are weighted based on the date of cash flows. Income returns are based on accrual 
recognition of earned income and incurred expenses, and appreciation returns are based on unrealized and realized appreciation and debt valuation adjustments. Annual returns are time-weighted 
and geometrically linked returns. Income and appreciation returns may not equal total returns due to compounding effects of linking quarterly returns. Note that after fee returns can be higher than 
before fee returns for some periods due to reversals of accrued performance fees. 

Performance figures for leveraged property aggregate do not reflect the deduction of fees and expenses charged or incurred by the fund; such figures would be lower had such fees and expenses been 
reflected. For example, if the fund appreciated by 10% a year for five years, the total annualized return for five years prior to deducting fees at the end of the five-year period would be 10%. If total 
fees were 0.10% for each of the five years, the total annualized return of the fund for 5 years at the end of the five-year period would be 9.89%. The historical returns achieved by the fund are not a 
prediction of future performance and there can be no assurance that these or comparable returns will be achieved or that the fund's performance objective will be achieved. The advisor's fees are 
described in Section 6 (“Summary of Terms”) of the memorandum. 

The net asset value and performance results provided are preliminary estimates, and are subject to revision. In particular, they have not undergone the final validation process, and accordingly, 
adjustments may be made that could materially affect the actual net asset value and performance results of the Fund. The estimates are based on management’s business plans as of the date 
indicated and take into account such factors and assumptions as management deems relevant as of the date of the projections, including, but not limited to, property operations and portfolio level 
expenses as well as assumptions as to the behavior of third parties and the terms upon which they are willing to transact. However, events assumed to occur may not occur, and other events may 
occur which were not assumed to occur or otherwise taken into account in preparing the data contained herein. Such events could materially affect the analysis. In addition, a number of factors, 
including (without limitation) global and local economic conditions, the availability of credit (or lack thereof), the level of interest rates and other credit terms, covenants in credit facilities, existing and 
future government regulations and future acts of regulatory bodies, demands for certain types of investments and a number of other market and competitive factors may cause the actual performance 
results to vary, perhaps significantly, from the estimates contained herein. You and your advisers should consider the impact of current economic conditions in evaluating the information contained 
herein. Moreover, the information set forth above speaks only as of the date indicated; it was not revised to take account of events which have occurred subsequent to the date indicated. Accordingly, 
it may not be representative of values or the amount that may ultimately be received with respect of an investment. No assurance can be given as to the actual events that may occur or the 
appropriate assumptions to be applied. 

Past and projected performance is not indicative of future results. Net performance results are after asset management and incentive fees. This information includes or is based upon certain “forward-
looking statements.” These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, the plans, projections, objectives, expectations and intentions of the Fund and its advisers and other statements 
contained herein that are not historical facts. These statements are based on current beliefs or expectations and are inherently subject to significant uncertainties and changes in circumstances, many 
of which are beyond the Fund’s control. Actual results may differ materially from these expectations due to changes in, among other things, global, political, economic, business, competitive, market 
and regulatory factors. The final NAV and performance results, as revised, will be published following the Fund's quarterly Board of Directors meeting in the Fund's quarterly report and shall supersede 
in their entirety any estimates contained herein. 

Index definitions
NFI-ODCE. The NFI-ODCE, short for NCREIF Fund Index - Open End Diversified Core Equity, is the first of the NCREIF Fund Database products and is an index of investment returns reporting on both a 
historical and current basis the results of 41 open-end commingled funds pursuing a core investment strategy, some of which have performance histories dating back to the 1970s. The NFI-ODCE Index 
is capitalization-weighted. Measurement is time-weighted. NCREIF will calculate the overall aggregated Index return. For more information on NFI-ODCE, please refer to www.ncreif.org
NCREIF Property Index. The NCREIF Property Index is a quarterly time series composite total rate of return measure of investment performance of a very large pool of individual commercial real estate 
properties acquired in the private market for investment purposes only. All properties in the NPI have been acquired, at least in part, on behalf of tax-exempt institutional investors - the great majority 
being pension funds. As such, all properties are held in a fiduciary environment. For more information on NCREIF Property Index, please refer to www.ncreif.org

PREA / MSCI U.S. Property Fund Index Core Diversified Open End Funds. The Core Open-End subset of the PREA/MSCI U.S. Quarterly Property Fund Index measures the gross of fees total return by 
open-end commingled funds of commercial real estate. The index is based on 21 of 27 NFI-ODCE Funds.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Certain risk factors

\ 83

An investment in the Fund is speculative and involves a high degree of risk. A prospective investor should carefully review the Fund’s Memorandum, understand the risks and conflicts of interest set 
forth therein, and should consult with its legal and tax advisors. There can be no assurance that the Fund’s investment objectives will be realized or that there will be any return of capital. An 
investment in the Fund is suitable only for sophisticated investors for whom an investment does not constitute a complete investment program and who have the financial resources necessary to 
withstand the risk of a potential loss of their entire investment.

An investment in private investment vehicles is highly speculative and involves a significant degree of risk. The risks involved would include, but not be limited to, those described below. A more 
thorough discussion of a number of the risks and potential conflicts of interest relating to an investment in the Fund is included in the Fund’s Memorandum.

Risks of Investing in Real Estate Generally. There is no assurance that the operations of the Fund will be profitable. Because real estate, like many other types of long term investments, historically has 
experienced significant fluctuation and cycles in value, specific market conditions have resulted in and may in the future result in occasional or permanent reductions in the value of the Fund’s 
investments. Investments in real estate are subject to various risks, including without limitation: (i) the cyclical nature of the real estate market and changes in national or local economic or market 
conditions; (ii) the financial condition of tenants, buyers and sellers of properties, (iii) changes in supply of, or demand for, properties in an area; (iv) various forms of competition; (v) fluctuations in 
lease rates; (vi) changes in interest rates and in the availability, cost and terms of financing; (vii) promulgation and enforcement of governmental regulations, including rules relating to zoning, land use 
and environmental protection; (viii) changes in real estate tax rates, energy prices and other operating expenses; (ix) risks due to leverage and dependence on cash flow; (x) changes in applicable laws; 
(xi) various uninsured or uninsurable risks and losses; (xii) acts of God and natural disasters; and (xiii) civil unrest, acts of war or terrorism.

Competition for Investment Opportunities. The activity of identifying, completing, and realizing attractive acquisitions of core and value added real estate and real estate related assets are highly 
competitive. The Fund competes for investment opportunities with many other real estate investors, including other real estate funds, individual and institutional investors, public and private real 
estate companies and REITs, and financial institutions. Many such entities have substantially greater economic and personnel resources than the Fund or better relationships with sellers of properties, 
lenders and others or ability to accept more risk than the Fund believes can be prudently managed.

Risks of Environmental Liabilities. Under various laws, ordinances and regulations of the jurisdictions in which investments are made, an owner or operator of real property may become liable for the 
costs of removal or remediation of certain hazardous substances released on, about, under or in its property. Environmental laws often impose this liability without regard to whether the owner or 
operator knew of, or was responsible for, the release of hazardous substances. The cost of any required remediation and the owner’s liability therefore as to any property is generally not limited under 
such laws and regulations and could exceed the value of the property and/or the aggregate assets owned. The presence of hazardous substances, or the failure to remediate hazardous substances 
properly, may adversely affect the owner’s ability to sell or use real estate or to borrow outside funds using real estate as collateral.

Lack of Liquidity of the Fund‘s Investments. The return of capital on investments and the realization of gains, if any, will generally occur only upon the partial or complete disposition of an investment. 
Investments will generally be highly illiquid compared to other asset classes, and it is unlikely that there will be a public market for most of the investments made

Performance Risk. Although the Fund has a substantial operating history, the past performance of the Fund is not indicative of future results. There can be no assurance that the Fund will achieve its 
targeted returns or investment objectives, which are included for informational purposes only.

Potential Conflicts of Interest relating to DWS’s Various Roles. As a diversified global financial services firm, DWS and its affiliates engage in a broad spectrum of activities, including commercial and 
investment banking, lending, principal investing, financial and merger and acquisition advisory services, underwriting, investment management activities, fund administration, providing depositary 
bank and custody services, sponsoring and managing private investment funds, brokerage, trustee, and similar activities on a world-wide basis. DWS and its affiliates may engage in activities where 
their interests and the interests of their clients may conflict with the interests of the Fund and/or 
its investors.

Use of Leverage. The Fund may use indebtedness (including guarantees) in connection with its investments. This indebtedness will increase the risk of investment loss on a leveraged property and 
increase the exposure of such investments to adverse economic factors such as rising interest rates, severe economic downturns, or deterioration in the condition of the real estate investment or its 
corresponding market.

Experience of RREEF America; Dependence on Key Personnel. While RREEF America and its affiliated entities have substantial experience with transactions and assets of the type that the Fund invests 
in, persons who have played active and important roles in the success of prior endeavors of RREEF America and its affiliates are not, and may not in the future, be associated with the Fund, RREEF 
America or their affiliates. The Fund depends to a significant extent upon the experience of members of senior management of RREEF America.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Important information

\ 84

The brand DWS represents DWS Group GmbH & Co. KGaA and any of its subsidiaries such as DWS Distributors, Inc. which offers investment products or DWS Investment Management Americas Inc. 
and RREEF America L.L.C. which offer advisory services, in addition to the regional entities in DWS.

An investment in real estate involves a high degree of risk, including possible loss of principal amount invested, and is suitable only for sophisticated investors who can bear such losses. The value of 
shares/ units and their derived income may fall or rise. Any forecasts provided herein are based upon DWS’ opinion of the market at this date and are subject to change dependent on the market. Past 
performance or any prediction, projection or forecast on the economy or markets is not indicative of future performance. 

War, terrorism, sanctions, economic uncertainty, trade disputes, public health crises and related geopolitical events have led, and, in the future, may lead to significant disruptions in U.S. and world 
economies and markets, which may lead to increased market volatility and may have significant adverse effects on the fund and its investments. 

This material was prepared without regard to the specific objectives, financial situation or needs of any particular person who may receive it. It is intended for informational purposes only. It does not 
constitute investment advice, a recommendation, an offer, solicitation, the basis for any contract to purchase or sell any security or other instrument, or for DWS or its affiliates to enter into or arrange 
any type of transaction as a consequence of any information contained herein. Neither DWS nor any of its affiliates gives any warranty as to the accuracy, reliability or completeness of information 
which is contained in this document.

The supplemental information referenced for the U.S. Core real estate leveraged property performance aggregate includes all discretionary and nondiscretionary core real estate portfolios. The 
performance is calculated according to the National Council Real Estate Fiduciaries property formula and is based on fair value of real estate. The GIPS composite, Americas Real Estate - U.S. Core 
Composite includes only discretionary core direct real estate portfolios.

Performance figures for leveraged property aggregate do not reflect the deduction of fees and expenses charged or incurred by the fund; such figures would be lower had such fees and expenses been 
reflected. For example, if the fund appreciated by 10% a year for five years, the total annualized return for five years prior to deducting fees at the end of the five-year period would be 10%. If total 
fees were 0.10% for each of the five years, the total annualized return of the fund for 5 years at the end of the five-year period would be 9.89%. The historical returns achieved by the fund are not a 
prediction of future performance and there can be no assurance that these or comparable returns will be achieved or that the fund's performance objective will be achieved. The advisor's fees are 
described in Section 6 (“Summary of Terms”) of the confidential offering memorandum.

ESG Disclaimer: Environmental, social, and governance (ESG) criteria are a set of standards for a company’s operations that socially conscious investors use to screen potential investments: 
Environmental (how a company performs as a steward of nature); Social (how a company manages relationships with employees, suppliers, customers, and communities); Governance (company’s 
leadership, executive pay, shareholder rights, etc.). Incorporation of ESG criteria in the fund’s investment strategy does not guarantee a return or protect against a loss, limits the types and number of 
investment opportunities available to the fund and, as a result, the fund may underperform other funds that do not have an ESG focus.

Certain DWS products and services may not be available in every region or country for legal or other reasons, and information about these products or services is not directed to those investors 
residing or located in any such region or country.

From time to time DWS receives information requests from investors or their consultants. This information is available upon request. Please contact us for assistance in this regard. 

TREASURY DEPARTMENT CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: THE CONTENTS OF THIS DOCUMENT WERE NOT INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE USED, BY ANY TAXPAYER FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
AVOIDING U.S. FEDERAL TAX PENALTIES THAT MAY BE IMPOSED ON THE TAXPAYER. SUCH CONTENTS WERE WRITTEN TO SUPPORT THE PROMOTION OR MARKETING OF THE TRANSACTIONS OR 
MATTERS ADDRESSED BY THIS DOCUMENT AND THE MEMORANDUM. EACH TAXPAYER SHOULD SEEK ADVICE BASED UPON THE TAXPAYER’S PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES FROM AN INDEPENDENT TAX 
ADVISER. THE FOREGOING LANGUAGE IS INTENDED TO SATISFY THE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE REGULATIONS IN SECTION 10.35 OF TREASURY DEPARTMENT CIRCULAR 230. 

© 2022 DWS Group GmbH & Co. KGaA.  All rights reserved. (02/22) 090224_1.0

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.



Notice to prospective investors in specific jurisdictions

\ 85

Notice to prospective investors in Canada: For Investors in Canada. No securities commission or similar authority in Canada has reviewed or in any way passed upon this document or the merits of the 
securities described herein and any representation to the contrary is an offence. There are risks associated with an investment in the Fund. The materials provided herein are submitted on a 
confidential basis for use by a limited number of qualified purchasers solely in connection with the consideration of the purchase of these securities on a "private placement" basis and only in those 
jurisdictions to whom they may be lawfully offered for sale, and therein only by persons permitted to sell such securities. The securities described herein may only be transferred in accordance with 
resale restrictions under applicable securities laws and investors are advised to seek legal advice for the resale restrictions applicable to them. Information contained herein is qualified in its entirety by 
the Memorandum and investors are advised to refer to such Memorandum. These materials are not, and under no circumstances to be construed as, an advertisement or a public offering of the 
securities described herein. These materials may not be reproduced in whole or in part and its use for any purpose other than to evaluate an investment in the securities described herein is prohibited.

Upon receipt of this document, each Canadian investor hereby confirms that it has expressly requested that all documents evidencing or relating in any way to the sale of the securities described 
herein (including for greater certainty any purchase confirmation or any notice) be drawn up in the English language only. Par la réception de ce document, chaque investisseur canadien confirme par 
les présentes qu'il a expressément exigé que tous les documents faisant foi ou se rapportant de quelque manière que ce soit à la vente des valeurs mobilières décrites aux présentes (incluant, pour 
plus de certitude, toute confirmation d'achat ou tout avis) soient rédigés en anglais seulement.

RREEF America REIT II, Inc. / Tulare County Employees' Retirement Association / June 2022                                    

Confidential—For Institutional Investors Only. Not for Public Distribution.























































F:/RETBD/AGENDA MASTER EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES  

 

 
 

EDUCATIONAL EVENTS - Board of Retirement  
 

 
 

2022 
 

 
1. SACRS, Public Pension Investment Management Program, July 17-20, UC Berkeley Haas 

School of Business. Topics include: investing fundamentals for new trustees, asset allocation, 
managing investment managers, and governance and decision making.  
Agenda is in the binder. 

 
2. CALAPRS, Principles of Pension Governance for Trustees, Aug 29-Sept 1, Current location-

Pepperdine, Malibu - subject to change. No agenda currently. 
 
3. ALTSSV, Forum, Sept. 8, Computer History Museum, Mountain View.  ALTSSV is hosted 

by CFA Society San Francisco, CAIA Association, CalALTs and Markets Group. Alternative 
investment industry insight on the future of venture capital, private equity, private debt, hedge 
fund and real asset investing.  Full Agenda in binder.  

 
4. Sixth Street, Annual Investors Meeting, Oct 25-27, St. Regis San Francisco.  

Only Save-the-Date currently. 
 

5. SACRS, Fall Conference, November 8-11, Hyatt Regency Long Beach, Long Beach, CA.  
 

6. Invesco Real Estate, Global Conference, Nov 15-17, The Lodge at Torrey Pines, San Diego. 
Only a Save-the-Date currently. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 


	A060822
	RB Agnda Pkt Web 060822
	A060822
	RB Disa Status Rpt 060822
	RB Consent 060822
	RB AC Financials 060822
	AC Financials 1 052522
	AC Financials 2 052522

	RB AC Strat Plan 060822
	RB AC Budget 060822
	RB OceanAve Presentation 060822
	Slide Number 1
	Legal Notice
	Slide Number 3
	Overview
	TCERA Status Update
	Ownership Structure, Team Composition
	Slide Number 7
	Ocean Avenue Capital Partners
	Target Market Segmentation
	Differentiated Sourcing Model
	Captive Sponsor Network
	Deal Flow & Selectivity
	Median OACP Purchase Multiples
	OACP Decision Making Process
	Optimizing Data Advantage at Intake
	Slide Number 16
	OACP Funds Summary
	Performance Benchmarking
	Fund IV
	Fund IV (Cont’d)
	Fund III
	Fund III (Cont’d)
	Fund III (Cont’d)
	Slide Number 24
	Current Market Outlook, Portfolio Impacts
	Fee Structure
	Slide Number 27
	Glossary
	Glossary (Cont’d)

	RB DWS Presentation 060822
	RB NewBiz DWS 060822
	RB NewBiz Hearing Officer 060822
	RB Ed Summaries 060822
	RB ED Binder 060822




